Tillamook County Transportation District
Board of Directors
Regular Monthly Meeting

Dial-A-Ride

A Service of Tillamook County Transportation District

Thursday, December 19, 2019 at 6:30PM

Transportation Building
3600 Third Street, Tillamook, Oregon



Account Code

Account Title

Tillamook County Transportation District
Normal Trial Balance
From 11/30/2019 Through 11/30/2019

Debit Balance

Credit Balance

1001
1006
1009
1011
1020
1030
1040

Report Total

Report Difference

Date: 12/2/19 03:52:14 PM

General Checking Account

Payroll Checking

NW RIDES ACCOUNT
Prop. Mgmt. Checking
LGIP - General Account
LGIP - Capital Reserve

Petty Cash

307,377.22 *
10,411.40 -
233,584.05 »
134,338.34 -
1,252,132.81 -
581,299.19 -
200.00

2,519,353.01

0.00

2,519,353.01

G

j2-2-17

MONTHLY BOARD REPORT - CASH

&N

'

Page: 1

2



[ :28ed souelIeA %9 398pNg QLA/M HodOY O AIIUON N £0:02:20 61/91/21 P18

%S TS (00°000°01) 00°000°7Z 00°000°C1 00°0 000 116¥ pun,j [e1aUar) WoL ] I9JSuBIL]
%87 [ #FTo11Y) 00°000°L 9L°688°C LY 1¥S 69999 016V swoouy dxg [euonerad( ases]
%0¢ 1 (00°005°€1) 00°000°€T 00°005°6 00°00S°1 00°00% 006¥ SWodU] 958"
%00°0 (00°000°1) 00°000°1 000 £€¢8 00°0 0TSt awoou] JUISIHAAPY
%80°89 (88'120°L) 007000772 zI8Le' 1 00°000°C O’ L¥6T 01SY AWOooU] 1SAU]
%000 (00°000°01) 00°000°01 000 €E€e8 0070 0l¥¥ auIooU] - S19SSY JO 9[eS
%00 t¥1 10°0t 00°000°T 100t €€€8 000 00+t SWO3U] SNO3UR[[IISIN
%1181 S1'I8Y 00°000°T 811841 £e¢8 Zr16l 00¢Y suonend( sng [eroadg
%9¢°1T (00895°78) 00°000°S01 00°ZEYTT 0070 000 S 74 01€S - swein
%9681 (00912°150) 00°000°01¢ 00'+8L 8¢ 000 000 ovTy () 11€6 - swein
%00°0S (00°058°¢€€) 00°00L°L9 00°058°¢¢ 00°0 00°0 0€Ty ALS - sjuein
%00°0S (00°000°%7) 00°000°8t 00700042 007000721 00°0 STy UDIe]N "IU0D) SeuMEd VIOMN
%68°LE (00008°622) 00°000°0L€ 00°00Z°0F [ 0070 000 ocey HIES V14 - swein
%000 (00 v1¥16L) 00 V1Y 16L 00°0 000 00°0 01T sjueln) [epde)
%000 (00°000°6+1) 00°000°6 000 00°0 000 LELY Areuonaisiq J1LS
2%00°0 (00°000°02¢) 00°000°02¢ 000 000 000 9¢1Y Anunwwosssiuy 118
%ZL 8P (00°9%1°LY1) 00°000°L8T 00 1S8°6€1 00°0 00°0 SElY e[OULIO,] LS
%£9'9¢ (6£198°¢C) 007000758 19°6€1°1€ £€°€80°L 000 0gly Xe[, [[0IAB] LIS NSURL] SSBN
%LY'SE (FTLIE 19D 00°000°05¢ 9.°789°88 000 9.°789°88 0ZI¥ SNUAASY JAqUIL] J1BIS
%¥L LT (98°£06°87) 00°000°0F P1°960°11 000 9T'6LS°C OLlY xe] Auodoid s1es A 1sed
%09°€9 (66'L19°9¢€) 00°000°S26 10°78£°88¢ 00°0 10°28€88¢ 001+ xe] Auadoig
YLbLE (65'180°CSS) 00°000°¢88 [7'$16°0€€ £E€8S°EL Y 06L LY 020% 9NUSADY 19B1UOD)
%y e 6h (06 16T°6€1) 00°000°5LZ 01'80L°CE1 L9916°CT 6T°0V0°1T 000Y Saure,|
%000 (00°62€°965°1)  00°STS°965°1 000 00°0 00°0 00S€ Jende) Sunpom
m@QuSOmom
%I Q0UBLIR A 193png [B10] [enoy 198png poliad fenoy poLd
123png [e10], IB3 A JUaLIN)) ilikMidlg) jleidililg)

610T/0€/11 43N0y, 610T/1/11 WoL]
JuLWIRIR)S [BIOURUI ]

1oL1SKT uonepiodsuea J, A}uno)) yoowe[[i],



7 :9%eq

MUBLIBA 2% 123png LA/ Hoday qOg Alyuow

%EC°LE 06°€L8'1 00°000°¢ 01'92I°1 00°052 TS
%0819 00°#TTY 00°000°C1 009LL°L 00°000°1 00PPI°L
%bL'S 9E P89 00°000°SL 19559 00°0S2°9 6€9YL 1
%99°98 00°000°1 00°00$°L 0070059 007529 00°0
%0 T ST'T66°81 00°000°S¢T SL'LOO9 ££°€80°C 000
%L 9S 68 €LL Y 00°0SL°TI1 1179L6°€9 L16L6%8 06L8L 11
%T8'9¢ T8 EPITEP] 00'758°997°C ST'0ILYES 00°SL9PS1 LET68'8YI
%lz8zl  (0L19€79) 00°00$°CT 0L'198°8C 00°6L8°1 (v6°201°2)
%$6°9¢ IL119'TF 00°000°99 67°88E YT 000 99°LLTY
%LITE LY PSOIS 00°009°SL €5°SH6°€T 000 657628y
%LE 8P CL'0S6'8E1 00+S1°69T €T E0T0L1 000 FECCTCT
%b6 0 68°€71°86 00°001°CTH1 11°9L6°¢Y LY IPSII oA
%9661 €9'970°9 00°000°0L SEELEEL €EEESS 00°L78°C
%E6°SE vSS80 bhL 00700 191°1 WPV LY L9 16L796 60°TS6°6L
%05 €€ 00°99%°9. 00°000°S11 00F£5°8¢ £EE8S°6 C8I6€°L
%L8'TE 1$°985°1€T 00°000°SHE 6V EIELl 00°0$.782 £THTY8I
2%€£0'TT (97°860°006°S)  00°TOI°LISL YL €00°L99°1 TE'80L°0C1 19SE°0LL
%81 (9€7L91°668)  00°TP8SI6 P9L9°91 000 $9°¥.9°91
2600001 000 00°000°¢ 00°000°¢ 00°0 00°0
%00°0 (00°98L°91) 00°98L°9 000 000 00°0
%000 (00 se81D) 00°S€8°T1 000 000 000
%IV 0UBLIB A 193png [e10L Jemoy 198png pouad jenioy poLad
128png e10], IB3 A JUALIND jualmn) jaLmy)

6107/0€/11 YSnoIyL 6107/1/11 Woiq
JuLUISIe}S [BIOUBUL]

1Ls1(q uoneliodsuel], AJuno) JoowelyL],

ovie
0TlLe
€01¢
(48
[01€
00I1¢

Seos
€508
s0¢
[€0¢
0c0¢
0r0¢s
0€0s
020¢
01o¢

8lov
Ll6v
916y
Sléy

INd €0:02:C0 61/91/C1 21

U wawdimbyg 20150
suondiosqng 29 san(g
Suiuue]q

JDUBUDUIBIA 2USGIM
1oddng aanensIUIWPY
S901A12G [BUOISSIJOI]

SOOIAIOS PUR S[BLISIBIN
SOOIAIOS [QUUOSIO [BIO ],

'suj uonesuadwo)) SI9I0OA
BGOA [10IARd

JUAWAINIY [[0IAB]

31RO BAH ][0IAB]
asuadxy jjo1hed
Q0UBUUIBIY :[[0IAR]
SIDALI(T :[[0IAR]

yoredsi(q :[joikeq
UOTIRISIUTWPY :[[0IAB]

SOIIAIDG [QUUOSIA]

S90UINOSNY [BI0L

pung JLLS WOl J9JSUBL],
VLIOMN WOl IoJsuel]
pun, J IS Wolj I9Jsuel],

S YoIng "YI A WOLJ JOJSUBL],



¢ 98ed 20UBLIBA %9 198png (LA/M Moday AOF AlYIuoN Nd £0:0T:20 61/91/T1 %

%00°0S 0079501 00 716°0C 00'85¥°01 00°00€ 000 00T$ sjusrdrosy o) spuswied 1S
sjuowAe [e1oadg
%SE°0¢€ SO'06L°9£0°1 00°LLS 881 S6'98L° ISt 17°929°601 68°€8T01 SIVIAIOG PUE S[BLIDIEIN [B10]
%91°¢8 05°€9¢ 00°00¢°C 0S'9€1°T £€'80T SI'SL 9pES Jurey Aujioe] suoneradQ
%S0 1L 6£7€9L°¢C 00°000°¢1 19°9¢7°6 €€7€80°1 SO THS'1 oves Iredoyf 29 urey Luadoig
26000 00°000°1 00°000°1 000 £€°€8 000 0€€S 09, 1958 X3
%8T 1€ £9°6£8°91 00°00S°¥T LEPIYL LY I¥0°T TLTIL] 00€S sosuadxy Suneredo) Auadoiyg
%000 00°00S°911 00°00S°911 000 £€'80L°6 00°0 06CS uoy) SuneradQ [ersusn
%80°6¥ ¥8LEYL 00°000°S1 91°29¢°L 00°05¢°1 8€TOT'1 $8Ts JUIB[A] J2IUSD) JONSIA 79 JISUBL]
%991 00°006°p 00°00%°8 00°005°¢ 00°00L 00°00L 08¢S 9SBY IRJUS)) JOMSIA 29 USUBL],
%LO0L 0t"80L 00°L9¢°C 09'859°1 STL6I 00°0 0LTS pun.j uoneaI53y J0qe AN
%P1 € 08°L86 00°00S°1 0TTIS 00°5T1 6v'€h 09T$ a3e1sod
%8S €€ T8'L9S°TET 00°000°0S€ 8I'TEFLII L9°991°6T 66°S16°CC S743 sasuadx [on,
%0095 £0'786°L8 00°000°002 L6'LIOTLL £9°999°91 $C'89¢°TE oves asuadxq JOIYoA
%9¢°LT S6'LETLT 00°005°L¢E $0'79T01 00°STIE 6SV19C 0TCs Supurel], % [aABIL
2%TL 6T F0'601°G1 00°00S°12T 96°06£°9 00°0SL°1 €7°T0€1 01zs ssuadxg suoydaja
%00°0 0009591 007095491 000 000 000 1616 u1Sa(]-9y SHSGIA
%¥9° 01 90°6.8°8¢ 00°005°59 v6¥79°9C £E'8SH'S £7'997°CI 061¢ Supasre
2%99°6¢ 00°596 00°005°1 00°¢€S 00°SZ1 00°0¢ ¢8lIs UOHENSIUIWPY [0Y0d[y 29 Sni(
%8< 9 LS°81S°TT 00°000°TH £hI8t°61 10°00°¢ 157786 081§ sasuadxy [euoneiadg
%0968 676501 00°000°01 1270968 £EEE8 81°€16 SLIS sasuadxy preog
%LS 9% 18°$16'9 00°000°¢1 611509 £€°€80°1 8°6T9E OLIS sosuadxs 20130
%000 0070008 000008 000 00°000°L 000 091§ JdouRINSU]
%£9°6 20'8L0°CE 00°006'S€ 86°1TH'€ £€'80L°T 66907 0S1¢ SASUBOIT 79 $99,]
%Y 1°8¢ 0£°906°9C 00005 €t 0S°€65°91 00°$29°¢ 00859°C ShIS AR Lomdwo)
%y QUBLIB A 128png [e10], [emoy 193png poriad [eMOY ponIo
Huwﬂv:m [eio] Jea A juauny EPE:U ED.EDU

610T/0€/11 YSnoIyL, 610¢/1/11 worg
LRIl [RISURUL ]

LS uoneiodsura ], Ayuno)) yoowe[i],



 108eg oueLIBA 29 198png LA/M Hoday qOd AJquopw
%¢€0°C 80'88¢°6C 00°000°0€ 6’119 00°00S°T 000
%000 00°000°9 00700079 000 00°00¢ 000
%00°¢ C8'6v8 Y 00°000°S SIoslI L9911y 000
%000 00°000°¢L 00°000°CL 00°0 000 000
%000 00°000°006 0070007006 000 00°0 000
%000 000052 00'005°L 00°0 000 000
%511 80°1¥T'CT 00°005°CT C6'8CC 000 000
%¢ET 91 88°7TH'E8 00°165°66 7189191 PEEEg ¢ 8209
%St by 8L CEVOL 001666 TTeeIel 000 00°0
%<T09 01'L86°1 00°000°¢ 06'C10°¢ L991Y 867209
%00°0 00°000°¢1 00°000°S1 000 00°0sT'1 000
%00°0 00°000°0S 00°000°0¢ 0070 L9991¥ 00°0
%Iv'1 9¢°'166°L0TT 00'999°6£T°C YOVLITE 000 9 ¥L991
%00°0 00°0T¢96¢ 00°025°96S 000 000 000 i
%000 00'S€8°56S 00°9€8°¢6¢ 00°0 0070 000
%SY'L 00°000°6¥1 00°000°191 00°000°C1 000 000
%00°0 00°000'01 00°000°01 000 000 000
%LTT 9¢7 108 vv8 00'9LV'¥98 YO¥LI61 000 ¥9¥LI91
2%00°0 00°SE°L I 00°¢€8°11 000 000 000
%00°0¢ 00°956°C1 00'¥16°ST 00°856ClL 00°00¢ 000
%00°0¢ 00°005°C 00°000°S 00°005°C 000 0070 -
%CY DUBLIB A 198png w10, ey 198png pouad [en1oy pouad

198png #10]

6107/0€/11 YSnoIY, 6107/1/11 woig

Iea X juaLmn)

uarumy)

JuSWIAIR]G [BIOURUL]

waLun))

L8 uoneliodsuea ], AJuno;,) JOowe[[L],

0+09
1209
0209
0109
0009
[6€¢
(1939

8¢ec
geee
0cTES
0res

0816
CLI6
0916
0c16
0€l6
0016

10ce

INd €0-0T°20 61/91/C1 -1
s1912ys/a3eudig doig sng
L0 uonen3uely ]9 190,
opeiddn 1onduro))
uonppyausuraoe[doy ue A
uonppyausumoeday sng
UOIBAOUY -sasuadxy "wiwpy
uoneAouy 2 Jeday Suipjing
saseyoing fende)
201A19S 192 10
90IAIRS 1920 dILO
asuedxq ueo QnNd
1521214] 358 X9
[edioun ] :25897 X9[]
301A12G 192(]
AemQ ende)

SIgJSuBl] [BI0]
[eg pun, Suipuy pajendoiddeuny
amnyipuadxq amnin g 10 241959y
pung VIOMN 01 Iajstel]
QAIASY JOIYIA 07 JJSUBI]
punj [BI2UdL) 0] 19JSUBIL
1€6S dIDT 01 I3jsuel],

SIasuel]

sjuawAed |e1oadg [e10],

swuardioay 01 siawked J11S



G :a8ed

souBLIBA % 198png LA/M Hoday qOd AJyiuomn

%66°L1 6T¥SS°C0T9 00°TOL°L9S°L ILLYS19€°] Y 168°ELT 1T°60STLT
%L6'1 90°€L9CIS T 00'160°9%S°1 ¥6'L1V°0€ 10056 1€°859°C
%660 81°0STTEY'L 00005 9F¥°1 8erTyl L991Y e £L°650°C
%0EE LUTLT'LSE 00°00S°00% £8'87C°¢1 000 €L7SS0°C 0509
%ZY J0UBLIBA 123png [e10] [enjoy 123png polrad [enjoy poLad
123png [e10L IBa & ualn)) glichiiilg) juaLIn)

6102/0€/11 YSnOXL 610¢/1/11 Wor]

JusuILIR)S [BIOURUL]

Jo10s1(q uoneliodsue. J, A)uno,) JOowe[[L],

d £0:0T°C0 61/91/C1 @1

sasuadxy [B10],
KepnQ [ende)) fe1o]
saseyaand Jeyde) [e10 ],
swaloid eude) 12430



| :a8eg aouetie 79 193png QLA Woday qOE AlYuoi Wd SE61:20 61/91/21 21
%6L b S8 IHOTT 00°000°0Z S1'856°8 L9999 £€9'810°C 012s asuadxg suoydaja
%10'vT 19'668'1 00°00SC 6£°009 £€'80T 000 081 sosuadxg [euoneIadQ
%L8'S1 TL609°11 00°008°€1 82061°C 00°0ST°T 007089 0LIS sasuadxg 20130
%000 00°000°C 00°000°C 000 L9991 000 091§ soueumsuj
%bT9TS (66+ZS°8) 007000 66'7TS 01 L9991 000 0SIS $I5U201T 79 5391
%EEET 0070081 T 00°000°C1 00°00S°€ 00°0ST°1 00°00L St WY Homnduio))
%P0°€S S6ELT'T 007005z S0'9TE°l £€'80T TTsTT ovis Yy wawdmbg 20150
%000 0070051 00°008°1 000 00'sz1 000 0z1s suonduiosqng 7 sangy
%97°T1 0S9PS LI 00°000°0C 0S'€SH°T L9°999°1 00'176 001§ SIOIAIDS [BUOISSJOI]
S9OIAIDS PUE S[ELISTBIN
%95°6€ 60°LSYPST 00°000°1Z# 16°TPS 991 00°00S"€€ 06'SS6°1€ SOIAIDS [UUOSIA] [BIOL
%000 (r$°502) 000 ¥S'50T 000 000 $50S ‘suJ uonesuadwo)) SIaNI0A
%9771 (9T'SH) 00°000°C 9T SPP'T 000 95°€59 €608 BAIA [[01KRd
%ST ¥9T (L0°$8T°€) 000002 LO'SSTS 000 82566 z50s JuaWINRY [[0148
%C1ST (EL°811°€T) 00°000°S EL°811°8E 000 1EISLL 1508 aIeoyIeSH] [[01Ked
%6101 €1°95€°L9 00°000°L LY EPY'L 007059 TUSI'L 0S50S asuadxy [J01keq
i eal! (zTees) 00°000°C1 TTEES Tl 00°000°T 09'161°C 1+0S JoaaIpuy :[jo1ked
%b8 1€ 8L'889'V1C 00°000°S 1€ ZTIIE001 00°0S2°9C £0°816°81 0108 uoNENSIUIUPY ([01KE]
S301AIAG [AUUOSIA]
%0V'TS (09FF8°S99°T)  0000000S°€  OVSSIHEST  L9999°16C SL'066'865 $30.M0s3Y [E10],
%000 (00°000°05€) 00°000°0S€ 000 £9'991°67 000 00vy SWIOOU] SNOSUR[[ISHA
%TT'8S (09°PP8°SIET)  00°000°0S1°S  OF'SSIPEST  00°00S°79T SL'066°86S  9T0F anuAARY YMN
$30IN0SAY
% TV DUBLIBA 198png [B10] [emoy 193png poLeg [en1oy pordd
108png [e10], 189 X ua1ny) waLny 2Ly

610T/0€/11 Y3nOIYL, 610T/1/11 WOL]
JudWalR]S [BIoURUI]

JONN

12181 uoneriodsuea y, £puno)) yoowe[L],



7 98e( doueiieA 29 193png (LA/M Hodoy qOd A[YuoW
%80°LY €6°ChETE8’] 00°000°00S°€ LO'LSS'LYY'I Y€ €80°06T 0L°06¥°€TE
%00°0 00°000°0¥ 00°000 0¥ 00°0 CeEeEe e 000
%00°0 00°000°0¥ 00°000°0% 00°0 geeeee 000
%000 00°000°0% 000000¥ 000 £eeees 000
%ovL 8% ¥8'$88°LSS"1 00°000°6£0°¢ 9 PITI8Y ] 10°0§2°€ST 08 ¥ES'16T
%L v 9¢'L6Y 00°006 ,vo.mov 00°SL (4] -
%991t 00008°C 00008y 00°000°C 00°00¥ 00°00¥
%%LEPE ¥1°9L6°8CC 00°000°0S€ 98°€Z0'1C1 L9991°6T 00°000°CI
%€8°65 00°91€°9L 00°000°061 00'¥89°¢l1 €EEE]CI 00°000°¢¢€
%¥S 08 LETPS981°] 00°000°00¥'C €9°8S1°€IT] 00°000°00C 91°E€Ee6ET
%61'¢ §TC8 Y 00°000°S SLYLI L991Y €6°6¢
%l1vCl 80°€88°L 00°000°6 69111 00°0SL 5Ly

%IV JoUBLIBA 198png [eio] [enioy 193png pound [en1oy pPoLag

198png [e10], Ie9 & jUdLIN) juaLny) juaLn)

6107/0€/11 YSNOXL, 610T/1/11 WoL]

JuSWIolelS [BIOUBUL]

LRSI uoneyrodsuea], A)uno)) JOowe[[L],

209

00¢€s
18¢¢
L9Ts
99¢¢
9°T49
092¢
0ces

INd S€:61:T0 61/91/C1 91

sasuadxyg ®1o]
Ae[InQ rende) [e10
saseyoangd [ende)) [e10],
JUSUIISIAU] SUB[OI]
saseyaIng ende)
AKenQ (ende)
S2OIAIIS PUR S[BLIDIEIA [BIO],
sosuadxq Funerad Auadoig
Y DIPFO
asanquiay ageaiy 12aIunjo A
JUIWISINQUITY T[N JoqUISA
uonellodsuel] paseyoing
ageisog
Suturel] 2% [9AvI]



Tillamook County Transportation District

Document Document Transaction
Number Date Amount

14660 11/8/2019 (364.25)
14831 11/30/2019 (622.85)
14859 11/5/2019 (135.00)
14859 11/5/2019 135.00
14882 11/8/2019 210.00
14883 11/8/2019 225.04
14883 11/8/2019 95.00
14884 11/8/2019 1,296.00
14885 11/8/2019 1,980.25
14886 11/8/2019 95.00
14887 11/8/2019 171.00
14888 11/8/2019 1,254.32
14889 11/8/2019 115.00
14890 11/8/2019 1,000.00
14891 11/8/2019 150.00
14892 11/8/2019 73.43
14893 11/8/2019 3.00
14894 11/8/2019 253.55
14895 11/8/2019 1,242.54
14896 11/8/2019 950.58
14897 11/8/2019 1,639.00
14898 11/8/2019 24,458.32
14899 11/8/2019 113.68
14900 11/8/2019 96.00
14900 11/8/2019 48.00
14901 11/8/2019 11,087.63
14902 11/8/2019 611.92
14903 11/8/2019 49,95
14904 11/8/2019 274.56
14905 11/14/2019 223.30
14906 11/14/2019 3,494.50
14907 11/14/2019 925.00
14908 11/14/2019 91.43
14909 11/14/2019 794.65
14910 11/14/2019 81.47
14911 11/14/2019 5,767.83
14912 11/14/2019 3,007.64
14913 11/14/2019 1,263.83
14914 11/14/2019 123.82
14915 11/14/2019 148.41
14916 11/14/2019 121.93
14917 11/14/2019 125.00
14918 11/14/2019 1,341.50
14919 11/14/2019 2,985.01
14920 11/14/2019 72.00
14920 11/14/2019 36.00
14921 11/14/2019 315.44
14921 11/14/2019 245.76
14922 11/21/2019 2,405.83
14922 11/21/2019 62.24
14923 11/21/2019 425.00
14924 11/21/2019 50.00
14925 11/21/2019 6,300.00
14926 11/21/2019 58.00
14927 11/21/2019 1,214.50
14928 11/21/2019 575.35
14929 11/21/2019 1,296.00

Date: 12/16/19 02:41:31 PM

Check/Voucher Register
1001 - General Checking Account
From 11/1/2019 Through 11/30/2019

Payee

Transaction Description

Ronald Pimentel

E & E Auto Body, Inc.

BIO-MED TESTING SERVICE, INC.
BIO-MED TESTING SERVICE, INC.
APW DISTRIBUTING

CATHY BOND

CATHY BOND

CHRISSY'S CLEANING SERVICE
GenXsys Solutions, LLC

GWEN RUSSELL

JORDAN SCHRADER RAMIS, PC
Marie Mills Center, Inc

North Coast Lawn

NATHAN LEVIN

NELSON NYGAARD

Office Depot Credit Plan

OR DEPT OF MOTOR VEHICLES
Pacific Office Automation
PETROCARD INC.

POSITIVE PROMOTIONS
PINPOINT STITCHES AND INK LLC
Sheldon Qil Distributors

TABATHA WELCH

TILLAMOOK COUNTY SHOPPER, LLC
TILLAMOOK COUNTY SHOPPER, LLC
TRILLIUM SOLUTIONS, INC.
ULINE

VANIR BROADBAND, INC.
VERIZON

Batteries Northwest

BOB'S AUTO & TRUCK PAINTING
Burden's Muffler & Towing

CAR CARE SPECIALISTS, INC.
Advance Auto Parts

FleetPride, Inc.

LES SCHWAB WAREHOUSE CENTER
McCOY FREIGHTLINER

DAVISON AUTO PARTS, INC.
NORTHSIDE FORD

PETERSON TRUCKS INC
Rosenberg Builders Supply

Scovel Service Ctr&Towing, LCC
Tillamook Motor Co.
CARDMEMBER SERVICE

WEST COAST EXHAUST

WEST COAST EXHAUST

Western Bus Sales

Western Bus Sales

BAUDVILLE

BAUDVILLE

BEST IMPRESSIONS PICTURE CO.
BIO-MED TESTING SERVICE, INC.
BOLDT, CARLISLE & SMITH LLC
BRENT OLSON

BRYAN P. FITZSIMMONS, CPA
Advance Auto Parts

CHRISSY'S CLEANING SERVICE

TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLANNIN
DOOR REPAIR

DRUG SCREENING

DRUG SCREENING
FURNACE MAINTENANCE
MILEAGE/TRAINING

CDL PHYSICAL
JANITORIAL AND BUS CLEANING
LAPTOP

CDL PHYSICAL

LEGAL

JANITORIAL TRANSIT CENTER
LAWN MAINTENANCE
NOVEMBER LEASE
FINANCE AND FARE STUDY
OFFICE SUPPLIES

DRIVER RECORD

COPIES

FUEL

DRIVER BAGS

BUILDING SIGNAGE

FUEL

MILEAGE/TRAINING
advertising

ADVERTISING

NWOTA MARKETING

BUS STOP PROJECT
INTERNET

TABLET DATA

BATTERIES

bus 29 body repair

TOW BUS 201 AND BUS 28
DEF

VEHICLE EXPENSE

SHOP INVENTORY

TIRES

BUS 301 EXHAUST REPAIR
SHOP INVENTORY

SHOP INVENTORY

SHOP INVENTORY

SHOP INVENTORY

BUS 302 TOW

BUS 201 INV 57941 59176
CARD CHARGES

BUS 27 EXHAUST REPAIR
BUS 201 BRAKES
INVENTORY

INVENTORY

BADGE MAKER SYSTEM
EMPLOYEE OF YEAR
BOARD PICTURES

DRUG SCREENING

AUDIT

MILEAGE

ACCOUNTING SERVICES SUPPORT
BAL DUE ON OCTOBER
JANITORIAL AND BUS CLEANING

Page: 1

\}



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1001 - General Checking Account
From 11/1/2019 Through 11/30/2019

Document Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description

14930 11/21/2019 2,000.00 CORPORATE TRADITIONS CHRISTMAS PARTY/HAMS

14931 11/21/2019 95.00 GARY PETERSON CDL PHYSICAL

14932 11/21/2019 900.00 KNOWLEDGE IN MOBILITY CONSULTING

14933 11/21/2019 416.73 TILLAMOOK ELECTRONIC SUPPLY BOARD ROOM LOW VOLTAGE PRC
Report Total 83,469.84

Date: 12/16/19 02:41:31 PM Page: 2



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1006 - Payroll Checking
From 11/1/2019 Through 11/30/2019

Document Document

Number Date Payee

5539 11/8/2019  HRA VEBA TRUST

5540 11/30/2019  SPECIAL DISTRICTS INS.
SERVICE

5541 11/30/2019  PACIFIC SOURCE

5543 11/30/2019  ATU LOCAL #757

Date: 12/16/19 02:41:37 PM

Page: 1



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1009 - NW RIDES ACCOUNT
From 11/1/2019 Through 11/30/2019

Document Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description
2212 11/8/2019 1,078.70 IDAT SOLUTIONS LLC CASE 185C50540 GARNISHMENT
2213 11/8/2019 77.21 Office Depot Credit Plan NWR OFFICE SUPPLIES
2214 11/14/2019 997.24 AAA RIDE ASSIST october

2214 11/14/2019 2,948.80 AAA RIDE ASSIST october nwr

2215 11/14/2019 1,089.56 COLUMBIA MEDICAL october

2215 11/14/2019 1,955.10 COLUMBIA MEDICAL october

2216 11/14/2019 6,767.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE october

2217 11/14/2019 11,646.31 RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE october

2217 11/14/2019 14,142.08 RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE october nwr

2219 11/14/2019 300.00 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. bus passes

2219 11/14/2019 8,355.50 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. NWR

2219 11/14/2019 10,395.50 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. NWR

2219 11/14/2019 11,385.25 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. NWR

2219 11/14/2019 11,727.25 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. NWR

2219 11/14/2019 9,479.40 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. NWR BENEFITS

2219 11/14/2019 30.00 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. BUS PASS

2219 11/14/2019 9,194.00 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. october

2219 11/14/2019 8,868.75 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. october

2219 11/14/2019 10,549.00 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. october

2219 11/14/2019 11,183.50 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. october

2219 11/14/2019 8,868.00 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. october

2219 11/14/2019 1,156.92 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. nwr payroll indirect 102519
2219 11/14/2019 1,158.70 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. nwr payroll 101119
2219 11/14/2019 9,175.68 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. NWR OCT BENEFITS
2219 11/14/2019 482.26 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. rent 09302019/ utilites
2219 11/14/2019 481.96 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. nwr oct rent/utility
2220 11/14/2019 39,231.75 WAPATO SHORES october nwr

2221 11/14/2019 1,635.86 ALFREDO EVANGELISTA NWR

2222 11/14/2019 2,652.42 ALICE CONLEY NWR

2223 11/14/2019 1,233.08 JANNA SMITH NWR

2224 11/14/2019 2,404.82 JOHN REKART JR NWR

2225 11/14/2019 1,847.50 JOY WINKELHAKE NWR

2226 11/14/2019 4,340.86 KANDIS LIDAY NWR

2227 11/14/2019 351.68 LEANN CHUINARD NWR

2228 11/14/2019 3,414.14 SEAN REKART NWR

2229 11/14/2019 25.55 CARDMEMBER SERVICE CARD CHARGES

2230 11/14/2019 2,396.74 VAL HOLYOAK NWR

2231 11/18/2019 10,532.05 K & M MEDIVAN october nwr

2231 11/18/2019 12,030.00 K & M MEDIVAN october nwr

2231 11/18/2019 9,033.15 K & M MEDIVAN october nwr

2232 11/21/2019 3,013.30 ELLIOTT'S MEDICAL TRANSPORT OCTOBER LESS GARNISHMENT
2233 11/21/2019 238.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE AFTER HOURS PHONES
2234 11/21/2019 1,769.25 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. nwr

2234 11/21/2019 11,199.25 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. nwr

2234 11/21/2019 9,928.68 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. nwr payroll 102519
2234 11/21/2019 9,841.16 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. nwr payroll 101119
2234 11/21/2019 8,026.00 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. nwr indirect g1 2019
Report Total 288,638.91

Date: 12/16/19 02:41:44 PM

BOARD - MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER - 1009 NWR ACCOUNT

Page: 1



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1011 - Prop. Mgmt. Checking
From 11/1/2019 Through 11/30/2019

Document Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description

4252 11/8/2019 300.00 CHRISSY'S CLEANING SERVICE JANITORIAL AND BUS CLEANING
4253 11/8/2019 456.91 Marie Mills Center, Inc JANITORIAL 3RD ST

4254 11/8/2019 425.00 North Coast Lawn LAWN MAINTENANCE

4255 11/8/2019 377.54 TILLAMOOK CITY UTILITIES WATER

4256 11/8/2019 166.95 CITY SANITARY SERVICE GARBAGE

4257 11/14/2019 258.92 CARDMEMBER SERVICE CARD CHARGES

4258 11/21/2019 350.00 CHRISSY'S CLEANING SERVICE JANITORIAL AND BUS CLEANING
Report Total 2,335.32

Date: 12/16/19 02:41:50 PM

Page: 1



|UMPQUA BANK: CLOSING DATE 11/25/2019

APPROVAL (42~

DATE {2~ 12-19

Date  |Vendor |Description of Transaction ~Amount
_ | DOUG PILANT
10/29/19 |YELLOW CURRY |[MEAL/OTA CONFERENCE - ' $ 3490
10/29/19 |FIREHOUSE GRILL |MEAL/OTA CONFERENCE N 26.10
'11/01/19_|RIVERTIDE SUITES 'HOTEL/CONFERENCE - s 36885
11/01/19 |WERNER B |MEALS/PERSONNEL MEETING 'S 21.40
11/04/19 |FACEBOOK |ADVERTISING i 11.51
11/04/19 |RODEQO . MEALS/DOUG AND JUDY - $ 37.96
11/07/19_|BIG WAVE CAFE MEAL/NWACT MEETING 1§ 2730
11/12/19 |PAADEE [MEALS/BARGAINING - 1% 5500
111219 |LARKSPUR ~ |HOTEUBARGAINING 1's 13445
~ 11/12/19 |OASIS RESTAURANT MEAL/BARGAINING ) '§  23.90 |
11/13/19 |WENDYS MEAL/BARGAINING . $ 8.79 |
11/14/19 |PIRATES COVE MEALS/DOUG AND KIMBERLY STANCHFIELD 3 26.00
| 11/15/19 |PIRATES COVE MEALS/DOUG AND JACKIE -  § 4250
11/18/19 |PORTSIDE B MEALS/DOUG ANDJUDY $  33.00
~ 11/18/19 |WENDYS 'MEAL/BARGAINING - - $ 939
- - - '$  861.05
~_CATHY BOND R B
10/31/18 |SEASIDE BREWERY | MEAL/CONFERENCE '$ 3700
11/06/19 |ADOBE SOFTWARE - s 2499
~11/08/19 | FIELDPRINT FINGERPRINTING B - ' $ 12.50
11/12/19  SMART FOOD [CHRISTMAS PARTY B - $ 14357
11/12/19 |SUPERMERCADO |CHRISTMAS PARTY - $ 25.99
| 11/18/19 |OTC BRANDS [CHRISTMAS PARTY $  147.12
11/18/19 |ENDICIA POSTAGENWR - $ 995
11/18/19 [USPS POSTAGE/NWR - $ 50.00 |
11/22118 [IRON MTN 'SHREDDING - $ 82.80 |
11/25/19 | LANGUAGE LINE _ TELEPHONE/NWR - R 3.95
" 11/25[19 LANGUAGELINE  |TELEPHONE/NWR o $ 4740
| 11/25/19 |MICHAELS STORES [CHRISTMAS PARTY $ 16.00
| il B B s e01.27
- = __BRENT OLSON =N
10/28/19 |PANDA EXPRESS " |MEAUNWR VEHICLE INSPECTIONS $ 7.80
10/29/19 |RIVERTIDE SUITES 'HOTEL/CONFERENCE - ~|§ 36885
11/07/19  ETSY EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION - |'$ 60.80
11/13/19 |USPS [POSTAGE - /s 2550
| 11/18/19 |PANDA EXPRESS [MEAL/NWR VEHICLE INSPECTIONS $ 7.80
11/25/19 |[MTCPRO ~ |SOFTWARE s T 98.00
| $  568.75 |
[ TABATHAWELCH »
10/25/19 |MOD PIZZA ~ MEAL/TRAVEL & TRAINING - 'S _8.67
10/25/19 |RIVERTIDE SUITES HOTEL/CONFERENGE B $ 130.96
10/28/19 [SAN DIEGO HOTEL HOTEL/CONFERENCE - . §  e4722
10/28/19 |KFC [MEAL/TRAVEL & TRAINING $ 3.49
10/28/19 |LYFT CAB RIDE/TRAVEL & TRAINING $ 1682
| 10/28/19 | PDX PARKING \PARKING ' s 8100
11/15/19_|NANI PAPA ~ MEAL/WORKING LUNCH/AUDIT 0§ 1495
“11/15/19_|ENDICIA |POSTAGE $  17.99
112119 |SUCCESSCRIES |EMPLOYEE YEARS OF SERVICE RECOGNITION | §  749.85
B - |$  1,670.95
CLAYTON NORRBOM | =
11/12/19 |DENNYS IMEALS/TRAINING % 6056
11/15/19  COSTCO |BUS CLEANING & OFFICE SUPPLIES ~§ 14590
11/15/19 | DAIRY QUIEEN MEALS/CLAYTON & JAMES $ 18.97
11/21/19 |KIMMELS TRANSIT CENTER WATER VALVE $ 1299
- - B $ 238.42 |
o B |STATEMENT TRUE UP -
- D - Charges total| $  3,940.44
Grand Total $  3,940.44




UMPQUA BANK

November 2019 Statement Page 10of 5
,&c Open Date: 10/25/2019 Closing Date: 11/25/2019 Account 790
# Visa® Company Card with Rewards Cardmember Service c 1-866-552-8855

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) BUS 30 ELN 78 15

; e Activity Summary

Previous Balance + $3,269.48
....................... Payments - $3,269.48crR
_ Other Credits - $80.00cr

Reward Points Purchases + $4,020.44

Earned This Statement 4,369 Balance Transfers $0.00

Reward Center Balance 17,576 Advances $0.00

as of 11/24/2019 Other Debits $0.00
For details, see your rewards summary. Fees Charged $0.00
Interest Charged $0.00
New Balance = $3,940.44
Past Due $0.00
Minimum Payment Due $40.00
Credit Line $10,000.00
Available Credit $6,059.56
Days in Billing Period 32
Fmr-| Mail payment coupon Pay online at Pay by phone
Payment Options: with a check =7 myaccountaccess.com (: 1:2866-552-8855

Please detach and send coupon with check payable to: Cardmember Service CPN 001469460

UMPQUA BANK

24-Hour Cardmember Service: 1-866-552-8855

tl . to pay by phone
I . to change your address

000009654 01 SP 000638279500575 P Y

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

3600 3RD ST STE A
TILLAMOOK OR 87141-2730

1003940445
Account Number 10
Payment Due Date 12/22/2019
New Balance $3,940.44
Minimum Payment Due $40.00
Amount Enclosed $

Cardmernber Service

P.O. Box 790408
St. Louis, MO 63179-0408

\D



UMPQUA BANK

November 2019 Statement 10/25/2019 - 11/25/2019 Page 2 of 5
..... . TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) Cardmember Service ‘: 1-866-552-8855

Rewards Center Activity as of 11/24/2019
Rewards Center Activity* 0
Rewards Center Balance 17,576

*This item includes points redeemed, expired and adjusted.

This Year
Rewards Earned Statement to Date
Peints Earned on Net Purchases 3,511 27 566
Gas, Restaurants & Telecom Double Points 858 7,752
| Total Earned 4,369 35,318

For rewards program inquiries and redemptions, call 1-888-229-8864 from 8:00 am to 10:00 pm (CST)
Menday through Friday, 8:00 am to 5:30 pm (CST) Saturday and Sunday. Automated account information is
available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

Paying Interest. You have a 24 to 30 day interest-free period for Purchases provided you have paid your
previous balance in full by the Payment Due Date shown on your monthly Account statement. in order to
avoid additional INTEREST CHARGES on Purchases, you must pay your new balance in full by the
Payment Due Date shown on the front of your monthly Account statement.

There is no interest-free period for transactions that post to the Account as Advances or Balance Transfers
except as provided in any Offer Materials. Those transactions are subject to interest from the date they post
to the Account until the date they are paid in full.

SKIP THE MAILBOX. Switch to e-statements and securely access your statements online. Get started at
myaccountaccess.com/paperless

Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation

$34.90
10/28  10/28- 8211 SQ*FIREHOUSE GRILL _SEASIDE OR $26.10
11/01  10/30 5050 RIVERTIDE SUITES  SEASIDE  OR $368.85
11/01 10/30 9329 WERNER GOURMET MEAT SN TILLAMOOK OR $21.40
11/04 11/03 3728 FACEBK B4Q79PNPR2  650-5434800 CA 3$11.51
11/04 10/31 5689 RODEO STEAK HOUSE - TI TILLAMOOK OR $37.96
1107 11/06 3162 TST*BIG WAVE CAFE MANZANITA OR $27.30
/12 1111 1223 PAADEE PORTLAND OR $55.00
1112 1109 8236 LARKSPUR LANDING HILLS HILLSBORO OR $134.45
1112 1110 1517 OASIS RESTAURANT  HILLSBORO OR $23.90
1113 11/11 1088 WENDY'S 8609 HILLSBORO OR $8.79
11/14 1112 0477 PIRATES COVE GARIBALDI ©OR $26.00
1115 1113 6505 PIRATES COVE GARIBALD! OR $42.50
1118 11716 7004 CKE*GARIBALD!I PORTSIDE GARIBALDI OR $33.00

Continued on Next Page



UMPQUA BANK

November 2019 Statement 10/25/2013 - 11/25/2019 Page 30of 5

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) Cardmember Service c 1-866-552-8855

e . - CreditLimit $5000

Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
1118 11/14 5895 WENDY'S 8609 HILLSBORO OR $9.39
Total for Accour 7808 $861.05

Post Trans

Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
. Purchases and Other Debits '
10/31 1029 4598 SEASIDE BREWERY SEASIDE OR 337.00
11/06 11/05 7457 ADOBE ACROPRO SUBS  800-833-6687 CA $24.99
11/08 11/08 6146 FIELDPRINT INC 888-291-1369 PA $12.50
1112 11/11 2755 SMART FOODSERVICE 540 ALOHA OR $143.57
1112 11/11 0918 SUPERMERCADO MEXICO HILLSBORC OR $25.99
1118 11/15 9468 OTC BRANDS INC 800-2280475 NE $147.12
1118 11/18 3659 ENDICIA FEES 650-321-2640 CA $9.95
1118 11/15 7061 USPS POSTAGE ENDICIA.C 800-576-3279 CA $50.00
1122 1121 1891 IRON MOUNTAIN 800-934-3453 MA $82.80
1125 11/23 5559 LANGUAGE LINE, INC. 800-7526096 CA $3.95
11/25 11/23 7381 LANGUAGE LINE, INC. 800-7526096 CA $47.40
11/25 11/22 2645 MICHAELS STORES 9887 BEAVERTON OR $16.00
Total for Accoun 512022 $601.27

Post Trans

Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation

10/28 10/27 8572 LOUISVUITTON#100 PORTLAND OR $80.00cr
MERCHANDISE/SERVICE RETURN

Ee.

10/25 10/23 7703 MOD PIZZA PDX AIRPORT PORTLAND OR $8.67
10/25 10/24 4983 LOUISVUITTON#100 PORTLAND OR $80.00
10/25 10/24 8573 RIVERTIDE SUITES 5037171100 CR $130.96
10/28 10/26 2062 SAN DIEGO DTWNBAYFRONT SANDIEGO CA 3647 .22
10/28 10/27 0332 KFC 4118001 SEASIDE OR $3.49
10/28 10/25 7236 LYFT *RIDEFRI2PM lyftcom CA $18.82
10/28 10/26 0075 PDXAIRPORT PARKING PORTLAND OR $81.00
1115 11/14 8614 SQ *NANI PAPA'A ISL TILLAMOOK OR $14.95
11/15 1115 1802 ENDICIA 800-576-3279 CA $17.99
1121 11/20 8988 SUCCESSORIES 800-535-2773 FL $749.85

Total for Account 4148 $1,670.95

Continued on Next Page



UMPQUA BANK

November 2019 Statement 10/25/2019 - 11/25/2019

awe 1ILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460)

Post Trans

10/28 10/27 1635
10/28  10/28 2471
11/07 11/06 5851
113 1112 7801
11/18 1117 3889
11725 11/23 1448

RIVERTIDE SUITES  SEASIDE OR
Etsy.com 718-8557955 NY

USPS PO 4083680269 TILLAMOCK OR
PANDA EXPRESS 2736 WARRENTON OR

FS *www.mtcpro.com 877-3278914 CA
Total for Accouni 349

Page 4 of 5

Cardmember Service (: 1-866-552-8855

Amount Notation

$7.80
$368.85
$60.80
$25.50
$7.80

$98.00
$568.75

NORRBOM,CLAYTON

Credit Limit $2500

Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
G S e : . Purchases and Other Debits ol
1112 11/08 4657 DENNY'S #6811 18007336 SALEM OR $60.56
1115 11/14 89685 COSTCO WHSE #1052 WARRENTON OR $145.90
1115 11714 0130 DAIRY QUEEN 17442  GARIBALDI ©OR $18.97
1121 1120 4775 KIMMELS TRUE VALUE TILLAMOOK OR $12.99

Total for Account 5675 $238.42

BILLING ACCOUNT ACTIVITY

Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
SeEeE ' Payments and Other Credits i e
1115 11/15 8 PAYMENT THANK YOU $25.55¢r
1115 1115 8 PAYMENT THANK YOU $2,98501cr
T"MMs 1115 8 PAYMENT THANK YOU $258.92¢r

Total for Account 790 $3,269.48CR

| 2019 Totals Year-to-Date

Total Fees Charged in 2019
Total Interest Charged in 2019

$0.00
$0.00

Continued on Next Page



Tillamook County Transportation District

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE REPORT Nov 2019
RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE NOV NOV YTD YTD YTD %

2019 2018 FY 19-20 FY 18-19 Change
Dial-A-Ride Service
Tillamook County 990 912 5,316 4,473 18.8%
NW Rides 779 700 3,859 3,647 5.8%
Dial-A-Ride Total 1,769 1,612 9,175 8,120 13.0%
Deviated Fixed Route Service
Rt 1: Town Loop 3,618 3,462 18,623 18,700 -0.4%
Rt 2: Netarts/Oceanside 586 551 3,236 3,338 -3.1%
Rt 3: Manzanita/Cannon Beach 2,909 2,849 15,982 15,856 0.8%
Rt 4: Lincoln City 1,293 1,152 7,828 6,516 20.1%
Local Fixed Rt Total 8,406 8,014 45,669 44,410 2.8%
Iinter City Service
Rt 5: Portland 707 887 4,467 4,711 -5.2%
Rt 60X: Salem 961 793 5,118 4,786 6.9%
Rt 70X: Grand Ronde 445 468 2,350 2,709 -13.3%
Inter City Total 2,113 2,148 11,935 12,206 -2.2%
Other Services
Tripper Routes 104 181 539 723 -25.4%
Special Bus Operations 73 8 1,212 1,142 6.1%
Other Services Total 177 189 1,751 1,865 -6.1%
TOTAL ALL SERVICES 12,465 11,963 68,530 66,601 2.9%
ONE-WAY TRIPS BY USER GROUP

Fixed YTD YTD YTD %
USER GROUP Route DAR FY 19-20 | FY 18-19 | Change
General (18 years to 60 years of age) 6,281 283 36,961 36,472 1.3%
Senior/Disabled 3,556 1,415 26,902 25,268 6.5%
Child/Youth (less than 18 years of age) 860 71 4,667 4,862 -4.0%
Total 10,696 1,769 68,530 66,601 2.9%
OTHER RIDER CATEGORIES Fixed YTD YTD YTD %

Route DAR FY 19-20 | FY 18-19 | Change
Ride Connection 74 448 338 32.5%
Tillamook Bay Community College 276 998 1,067 -6.5%
NWOQTA Visitor Pass 72 841 896 -6.1%
NW Rides 656 3,402 3,647 -6.7%
Helping Hands Shuttle 94 701 302 132.1%

12/12/2019

11-19 RIDERSHIP REPORT.xisx

(,l‘



Tillamook County Transportation District Nov 2019

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE

Operating
Service Passengers Farebox Cost
Month per Hour Ratio per Hour
Dial-A-Ride Services
Nov-18 1.3 60.8% 64.44
Aug-19 1.6 55.6% 73.66
Sep-19 1.6 58.2% 70.87
Oct-19 1.6 58.2% 70.87
Nov-19 1.5 57.7% 70.40
STANDARD 1.3 65.3% 56.36 |
Deviated Fixed Routes
Nov-18 6.0 9.7% 65.56
Aug-19 6.5 9.1% 78.09
Sep-19 6.3 9.7% 73.64
Oct-19 6.3 9.6% 70.86
Nov-19 6.2 9.5% 70.53
STANDARD 7.0 12.4% 64.60 j
Intercity Services
Nov-18 3.3 23.5% 72.87
Aug-19 3.4 18.6% 87.42
Sep-19 3.4 19.6% 83.54
Oct-19 3.3 20.5% 80.90
Nov-19 3.2 19.7% 80.95
|  STANDARD 2.9 31.5% 72.86
Other Services
Nov-18 6.2 5.0% 57.72
Aug-19 49 6.2% 72.10
Sep-19 5.0 7.3% 66.97
Oct-19 5.1 8.3% 63.56
Nov-19 5.2 9.0% 62.67
STANDARD 6.9 10.7% 67.00

Dial-a-Ride includes Central, North and South Counties Dial-A-Ride Services

Deviated Fixed Routes: 1 Town Loop, 2 Oceanside, 3 Manzanita/Cannon Beach, 4 Lincoln City
Intercity Routes: 5 Portland, 60X Coastal Connector, 70X Salem/Grand Ronde

Other Services: Trippers and Special Bus Operations



| abed %E'9C 166'000'L 3§00 o8I g loqeT| ‘sbes| jejo L
8202 9l's 80'0 %0°82 £€6'c  99°¢L L00'v9Z°L [0L0'€9C  8SE'SE L19'60L  9l0'cSZ  [908'9Sy  826°0T Lzv'LL 0£5°89 £9€£°9E SadIAI9S QLO1 [BloL
19§ oLt 600 %06 4 2929 09212 LSP'y Ji73 859°€l Yoy’ 6EEY 61S 533 161 ze6°L SBOIAIRS JBYI0 [EJOL
SL'9 550 800 %L°6 L'y LEEQ 8be'9lL £Cr'E 895 /8€°0L 0/6°L CEE LEE 85S¢ zie'L S85°1L uonelssdQ sng [eidads
Sy £9°0 ZLo %6°9 9'9 09 Zle'y 820'L 6.1 L22'e 1214 £82 881 18 6es FARS siaddu |
EERIINEISPENTe)
¢6SlL 961 S0°0 %.L'6L 43 §6°08 966°00€  [¥2E'L9 818 ¥68°LG1 165°€L S98°CEL  lTv'Y 81t GE6'LL 8/1°65 Ajss1y) [eoL
¢St cel €00 %V'v Fx4 8208 Lyy'0L 8be'vL ze6'L 6GC°LE 206'91 915°0€ Z0L°L 118 0Se'z 160'E 3pUCY pueID X0L
26’6 99¢ §0°0 %811 Le SLv8 BSE'GIL  [82S'ET 8L0'c Li2'gs L0g9'0¢ 6v2°SS ¥89'L LLE'L 8LL'S €65°€) wales X09
16’82 16’6 900 %6°9€ 0e FAN:7A 6L'SLL  |8bP'Ee PAS A vTr'z9 880°'9¢ 00L'2y Ge9'l 0Lv'L 9P £6Y'CY puejliod 50
SIS
699 80°} 010 %G'6 c9 £5°0L 18L°1ZS  |€SL'60L  0L2°9L 615726¢ 6€2'86 Goe'LL) 1868 68€°L 699'SY 0Sy'6Y 9IN0Y pajelns(q [ejoL
60°2 8G°) 900 %<C'6 Sy [PV 991'GEL  [BOE'GC ¥S8'e z81°'0. 1252¢ G285 ¥20°C LGL'L 828, Sov'CL AJD uloduIT 0
§8°L 621 600 %S0l 86 08°LL 825961 [0ZL'L¥ 820'9 Lez'oLl 8rL'6e 089'0Z 000°€ 8€.°C 286'GlL 189'02 ejuezuen €0
65°€ LU S0°0 %Z'G 4 91°69 16169 L6Y'vL €0z'e ¥82'0F €L2TL 0502z rEL 100°) 9ez'e G6S'E 8pISUBSDQ/SHEIeN 20
2.9 690 210 %901 8’6 1L2°€9 PAZA VAR 4° 1 T4 sgL'y zesaL Pieion 4 026'SC 09z L06°L €29'81 69.°CL dooumol L0
Sjnoy pejeinsg
79°0v 9r'9¢ S0°0 %L°LS S 0¥°0L ¥95'0cy (18088 PSLEL 9vS'0bc 28181 9ezeyl  80v'L v.6°G G/L'6 £08°2vC yvaieoL
G0°LS 56'8S 900 %882 0l 6£CL 10,88  |S91°09 182'8 695°09} /8885 8l£90L 286'% 886'C 658°c £05°'2¢¢ Sepid MN
044 88°C s00 %911 LC 8€'99 Z298°'IEL (91922 7504 8/6°6L G686l 616'GE 9v'e 986°L gle's 00€'S) SpId-v-iEId
9VIAIBS OpId-V-1eIg
uny/ainoy
(g) now ($) s1e4  Apisang oney oy Jad () eyey | ($) s1soD | ($) s1s0D  ($) 150D (8) s1500 S109 SOl SINoH SINOH sibussedq (8)
SAINIBS abeieny ¢ bussed xogaieq4 sibusseqd  AunoH |ejo] 18u1pUY| 12810 pesed pesed eolnes pied LA soIas alA enusney
/onusAsy ’ ’ Aunop abealy QLA ’ aLa aJe4 JLA
6102/9L/11 6102 AON nJyJ

995URLLIOLIAY PUB SDIISIIR)S 9)e(-0)-1B3 A

0202/6102 Ad |1endY

Jou3siIg uonepodsuel| Ajunos yoouwe|jiy




Z abed
%E’8 98¢°96 L00'v92°'L S19°291°L %9°0-  |bLL- Lzv'LlL ves'LL %6'C |626°L 0€589 109'99 %90 920°C €6E'€6E  LZE'LSE SadlAleg g1l [elol
%lcc [£98°€ 092'te L0V°LL %ScL 8¢ 6EE c0e %L'9-  |vLL- 1641 G98'L %S6LL [9P0°L ze6'L 9.8 $80IAIBG JBUI0 [B10L
%0°0C |02L'C 8re'9lL [29'¢) %66 |€C 8s¢ see %l 9 |04 (%A A %G'2.C [S9L°L 585°L ocy uoneladQ sng [eads
%00 |ZEL'L ZLe'y 08.'¢ %y LT (Vi 18 .9 %v'GC- (V8L 6£9 €eL %L9C- |6LL- PARS 95y sieddy |
§80IAISS 18410
%8°0L |99€'6C 966'00€  LE9'LLZ %C0-  |6- 8L.Le 8z.'c %ce  |Lie- SE6°LL 90¢'CL %Z L~ |48V 8/1'6S 1G6/°€9 Ayossuy |ejo L
%LLL  |8E0°2 Lrr'0L €0v'c9 %00 |0 118 228 %E'cL- |6GE- 0S€°C 60.°C %.,°GZ- |0L0°)- 160’ 9Ly spuoy pueig X0
%E0L  |€18°0L 6SE'GLL  9vS'vOL %L0-  |6° L2€'L 08¢’} %69 |2E€ 8LL'g 98.'y %P6 [S9L°L €65°ElL rA AN wseles X09
%L LL |SLGLL /61°GLL  Z89'E0L %00 |0 0Lv'L 0L¥'L %C'S  |vvT- L9v'y L'y %6'6-  |699'7- £6v°Cr 291y puepod S0
T
%9'L  |pSL'9E 18L°l2s  9ev'y8y %00 |0 68¢€'L 68€°L %8¢ |6SC'L 699Gy oLb'vy %6V L0eC 0Sv'er 6vL'LY 8JN0Y paxl4 (ed07 [EJI0L
%S L £0v'6 99l'6el  €9/°GZL %00 |0 1GL'L 1621 %102 [2LE’L 8¢8'L 916’9 %PelL  [L9V°)L Sov'elL 8€6°01 ANQ ujoour #0
%L'L Lp0'pL 8/G'96L  0e5'Z8L %00 |0 8€L°C 8€LT %80 |91 286'sl 958Gl %8S |62l 18902 26561 ejuezuely €0
%L, 196'Y L6169 0€C'v9 %00 |0 100°L 100°) %l€- |20L- 9€z'e 8€E’E %0'L |9€2 §6S°C 6SE'E spisuesdQ/sUBIeN 20
%S°L £pe'8 ¥2'0ZL  v06'LLL %00 |0 106t L06'L %¥'0-  |LL- €29'8) 004'8L %0~ | LES- 69,21 00g'el doojumo] L0
N0y pajeiraq
%L9  |elv'ee ¥95°0zF  0SL'P6E %EC  |ChL- v16'S 9119 %0°€L  |GS0°L S/L'6 0ci's %¥L  |2SZ’t €08'¢yC  1SS'6EC ova [eloL
%0°C £€89'G 104882  8lL0'e8e %0°L-  |c0g- 886°C 062"y %8G |2lT 6G8°¢C 1¥9'E %l0 |cle €05'22¢  Le6l'Lee S8piy MN
%8l |0EL'0T z298'LeL  gel'LLL %88 |09} 986°L 9z8‘L %88l |e¥8 9lE'S LYY %8€C |0V6'T 00€'sL 09e'elL aprd-v-lelq
S0IAISS 8pIY-v-eId
uny/3Ino;

aduslayig | 8dualaia 150 8104 1507 [eI0] soualayiq | @oussayiq  SINOH sinoH | 9suaJayiq | @duaieyiq sibussey  sibusseq 9ouaLeyId | ouUsiBid  BnuUsAsY  SnuaAsy /8oy

Juadlad Junowy Jusdlad | nowy  8JIARS 80IAIeS | Jusdled junowy Juadlsd | unowy aleq aseg

02/61 61/81 0z/6l 6L/8L 0z/eL 6L/8l 0c/6l 61/81

6102 AON nJyL 6102 AON niy 6102 AON NIYL 610C AON NIy L

6L/8L Ad 01 8L/ILLAL

uospedwon IBAA-IOAQ-IBOA

191)s1q uonepodsuel | Aunoy joowe(|iL




%0'S 820'8S €v9'sez’l  SL9'/91L°L Sis0) (1oL
¥6°25 $ %00C Hoid snid = BECR L EENELS)
chvy $ ajey AunoH yoeon %G 01 6¥6'vC 010'e92 190°'8€2 S1500 19.1g

%E 92 pesusAQ snid sng ||ews %Z'L 99L'g 219'602 LSP'L0Z 1800 peseg AunoH
ve've  $ sley ApnoH ueAlLIN %601 €L6'7Z 910'€Se £01'822 s1s0) paseg abeay
%0'E $}80Q 10813 snid W0id pesyssr0 [eroy %60 zZ0L'y 908'95t v0L'ZSY abeay
i6'ee $ ajey APNOKH |enjoy %g'Sh JousRYIg  sdualaylg 0z/6l BL/8L uondiasaqg
:uonenaje) ey AUNoH %04 Shid snid uopieInajes ajiw Jad 309 usoiad  junowy 0Z/61 Ad 01 6L/8LAS
1509 uone|noje) uoneradQ sng |e1nadg 6102 19quaAoN ybnoayl qlA uospuedwosn
¢ abed
%E'T (430 gL's 826 %l L %lCc %0'8C %L’ 0E %9'E 10 6¢ g€ %06 LB'S omﬂn 65799 $30IAJBS JBLIO [BI0L
%LEEL  |€90 oLl %0 %L 6L %0 %06 %0°G %591 o= 4] 9 %98 96’ 19'29 ¢l LS $80IMag JBYO gﬂ
%L'GSC |60 LE'L LE0 %L |%99 %L'6 %1€ %t € 0 L'y 534 %16 1e's LE'E9 90'88 uofiesadQ sng [e1sds
%860~ 100~ £9°0 €90 %LEY  |%2'S %69 %1LZL %9°8¢- 4 99 80l %02 96'¢ 9v'09 0595 siaddu).
SIAIBS /U0
%L'G-  [920 9% 2z s %Z3l- %8 ¢E %L 6 %S €C %02 10" 3 B3 %L Ll [80'8 5608 18721 ARl [E10 |
%y'yl-  |2C0 el v %lL'€E-  |%CC %¥y %99 %ECh o 12 L'e %Ll 208 8z'08 'L 8puoy puely X0L
%E'2 900 99'¢ 09'¢ %6°0- %0 %8 L1 %6 kL %lL €0 L'e S€ %L LL or'8 SL'v8 9L°6L wajes X09
%Q'G- 05°0- 156 LO0L %68l |%9°8 %69 %S Sy %C’G- <0 o€ e %L'LL ¥8'L LE'8L €802 puejod S0
R
%0'C 200 80°L 90'L %G %< 0 %86 %L'6 %8'C 20 29 09 %9, 16V £6°0L 9G8°G9 9IN0Y paieineg [ejoL
%3G~ 6070 8G°L 89°L %S'S %S0 %26 %L'8 %1 02 20 S vils %S'L LE°G Ze il 8L A)D wjodun ¥0
%6V 900 621 €Tl %8 L~ %20 %S 0L %L 0L %8°0 00 8'G 9's %l £Lrs 08'LL 1999 BHUBZUBW €0
% 0L 010 LEE 10l %90~ %00 %Z'S %S %1€ 10 e £ %l'L 96y 91’69 0z'v9 2pISUBRQ/SHEISN 20
%€~ €00~ 690 L0 %20l |%EL- %90l %6711 %t 0 00 86 86 %S'L 6€'V 17°€9 88'8S doo umol Lo
8oy pajeieqg
%e0l- |pOe- 9v'9e 05'62 %0°9- %0°€- %l LS %8 09 %L Gl 20 s [l % 6 S6'S 0r'0L 124 %] dva [EloL
%G ee- S6'85 0e'29 %8}~ %S |- %88 %€°08 %8¢l 1’0 o'k 60 %46 r'9 6€¢CL 16'G9 S9pIy MIN
%'y Lo 88'¢C =V %e'y %S0 %91 %lLL %E'6 0 £Z v’ %16 ¥s's 8E°99 G809 apiyd-v-1e1a
AVIAIBG BpIY-y-[EIg
W usdiad | 41 Junowy ale] aleg WiQ Ws2Iad | i@ unowy oney opey JIg Jusdied | 41 junowy INOH/ INOH/ 41q Uadiad | Yig junowy  ajey AjinoH  aiey AUnoH uny/ainoy
abelany abelany x0qa.ie X0Qaleq JBusseq JBusseq
ag/6l 6L/81 0z/6L 6L/18L 0z/el 61/81L oz/6l 61/81
610C AON NIy L 6102 AON NIy 6102 AON Iy 6102 AON NIYL

uosuedwon 92UBULIONA d)e(] O} Jed

02/6L Ad 01 61/8LAd
jo13s1g uoieHodsuel | AJunod yoowelji L



NMWCONNECTOR

Coordinating Committee Meeting
December 13, 2019
Tillamook County Transportation District
3600 39 St
Tillamook, OR
10:00 am—2:00 pm
Teleconference Information

866/755-7677
Pin # 005939
Agenda
10:00— i .
10:05a 1. Introductions. Welcome to guests. Doug Pilant
2. Consent Calendar (Action Items)
ToEaR= 4+ November 8, 2019 Meeting Minutes (Attached) D 1
o1 53 4+ November 2019 Financial Report oug Pilant
15 4 Ridership Tracking
4 Calculating Average Passenger Miles Progress

10:15—= 3. Discussion: NW Oregon Works Debra Smith
11:00a
11:00— 4. NWConnector Marketing
11:30a 4 Update Selena Barlow

5. NWOTA Standing [tems
4 IGA Approvals Update

11:‘30_ 4 Management Plan Approval Updates Doug Pilant
12:00p 4 Website Alert Implementation
4 Travel Studio/Transportation Committee

12:00— 6. Lunch

12:30p

1:2(;?(’)(1))_ 7. Update on CCR System Changes and Finances Todd Wood, All
) 8. Transitioning Discretionary Inter-City to

1:00_ Discretionary Funding All

1:30p 4 Discussion

;:'?c,)%_ 9. Other Business and Member Updates All
:00p

Attachments:

November 8, 2019 Meeting Minutes

NWOTA meetings are open to the public and accommodations will be provided to persons with
disabilities. If a sign language interpreter is needed, please call Mary McArthur at 503.228.5565 at least 48
hours prior to the meeting.

www.nwconnector.org

oein

s suNsETEmE

By ThANSEORTATION

N s rrIcT
TRANSPORTATION sl




Oregon Transit Alliance (NWOTA)
Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes
November 8, 2019
Tillamook County Transportation District
Tillamook, OR

1. Introductions: Doug Pilant, Coordinating Committee Chair, opened the meeting. Meeting
attendees/teleconference participants included:

— Jeff Hazen—Sunset Empire Transit District

— Cynda Bruce—Lincoln County Transit

— Doug Pilant—Tillamook County Transportation District
— Lisa Scherf, Brad Dillingham—Benton County Transit
— Mark Bernard, Arla Miller, Ken Shonkwiler—ODOT

- Selena Barlow—Transit Marketing

— Holly Kvalheim—Trillium Transit

Excused:

2. Consent Calendar: Unanimously approved. (JH/TW)

4 October 11, 2019 Meeting Minutes—No changes.

4 October Financial Report—No changes from September report.

4 Ridership Performance Report—Jeff updated the SETD numbers which will significantly
change NWOTA'’s results. Decemberidiscussion—How to handle CCR numbers. Doug
noted a NWOTA connection to Oregon’s Clean Cities Program—Energy or pollution
credits. Similar to Clean Fuels program. NWOTA’s combined numbers may make the
region eligible for additional eredits. DEQ program related to clean air program,
working with the US Dept of Energy. Credits could beused in the future through a
process akin to a credit bank.

4 Calculating Averzig,e Passenger Miles Progress—No change. Jeff and Lisa will start work
on their calculations.
3. NWOTA Standing Items:,
4 IGA Approval Updates—Benton County—Brad will start work on getting it passed.
4 Management Plan—Benton County—Brad will also start work on this.

4 Website Alert Service—Tillamook noted that even with the alert training staff still needs
periodic reminders to implement alerts. Sunset and Lincoln are working on getting their
training.

4 Travel Tourism Studio/Transportation Committee—Meeting again next week. Kathy
Kleczek will start attending.

4. Transit Stops Improvement Summary Report
General feedback from the NWOTA partners included:

Enlarge NWConnector logo

Switch out all references to “Bus Stop” to read “Transit Stop”

Page 2, correct typos: Route should read routes, Sunset Empire Transportation District
Page 3: Change NWOTA’s aim is to promote to NWOTA provides.. . .

Page 3: Add bullet regarding visibility of the transit publics to the general public, eg,
easy to identify transit stops

e Page 4: Mary McArthur organization should be Columbia Pacific EDD

NWOTA Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes (11-8-19) 1|Page



5.

Website Trip Enhancements RFP

RFP went out this week and was posted to ORPIN. Mary sent the RFP our by email to a list
of 14 consultants. Proposals are due on November 26t and will be on the December
NWOTA agenda. Doug can take the recommended contractor to the TCTD Board for final
approval either in December or January.

NW Connector Marketing

Selena presented her marketing recommendations. Direct route from Astoria to Portland
will enhance the system, as will more driver training on the bus passes. Improved service
between Newport and Corvallis will also help. Recommendations include:

o Branding. Improve consistency of branding: Bus stops signage, vehicles and literature.
Would be easy to add a NWConnector logo onto all buses. Add logo to schedules.

e Website/Passenger Information. Trip ideas, Open Trip Planner to replace Google Trip
Planner which will be more flexible than just showing fixed routes, include all NWOTA
services, NWConnector maps at major stops. Update NWConnector over time to how
often buses travel each route.

o Fares and Fare Media. Update paper tickets, consider mobile ticketing (Loken Transit,
Hopthru), consider Family Fare (just changepolicy or establish another fare category),
establish ticketing agreements with Amtrak and Greyhound: Don’t enter.into anything
longer than one-year contract as technology is rapidly ¢hanging.

e Promotional Opportunities and Social Media. Ask promotional partners to post
NWConnector website link. Be sure linkage is to the NWConnector home page, establish
a NWConnector Facebook Fan Page (create engagement with website visitor, post
events, post itineraries, interact with Facebook pages of promotional partners), ask
promotional partners to like and report NWConneetor content. Flash alerts from
Facebook has been very effective for CER. Boosting ads on Facebook are also very quick,
effective and widespread:

e Promote to Potential Visitors. Target audience: Transit-ready travelers and those
interested in the Oregon Coast. Promotions: On-transit advertising with attractive
pictures of the Coast, on-line advertising to people who live in origin cities and are
transit ready, Facebook ads, tap Google search information, bus back ads.

e Creative Approach. Straightforward messaging: direct, car-free, low-cost. Stock photos
of destinations. Call to action—drive traffic to website. Creative sample itineraries.

Hollywould be available to manage the NWConnector social media, placing ads, and utilize
Google Analytics to track performance. Local advertising: Bold and consistent brandmg,
gasy tounderstand passenger information, Every Door Direct Mail to targeted addresses.

Partners supported and approved of the report and asked Selena and Holly to move forward
on the creative component. Holly will get the Facebook page started, with the goal to have

everything ready to go in February. They will give a progress report at the December
meeting.

Other Business/Member Updates

4 Arla Miller stopped by and introduced her daughter.

4+ Sunset Empire—Picking up ridership from Tongue Point, working on a new bus wrap
that includes NWConnector, starting up the Astoria to Portland route.

4 CCR—Will need to cut service by 30% to 40% due to the ballot measure failing. See very
little ridership using the NWConnector visitor passes. Thus a $12,000 annual
membership in NWConnector is no longer an option. Columbia County is still a pass-
through to the Coast and Longview. And with Sunset Empire’s service to Portland, not a
need for CCR’s role in the NWConnector system. Feedback from partners—This storm
will pass, don’t be in too big a hurry to make a change regarding the NWConnector

NWOTA Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes (11-8-19) 2|Page



system. Jeff and Doug will be meeting with Todd about cutting service. Will get an
update at the December meeting.

4+ Benton—The Amtrak connection has officially come to a halt, replaced by Phase 1 of the
Coast to Valley. Brad has gone through the website training with Holly and has already
made some trip changes and used the alert option.

4+ Lincoln—Will be working on updating their components of the NWConnector website.
Been going through multiple conferences and trainings.

4 Tillamook—Still moving forward with the purchase of the Transit Center, office and
adding two new administrative assistants, interline agreement done with Amtrak,
launched STIF enhancements, started updating TCTD Strategic Plan.

Discussion on transitioning discretionary inter-city to STIF formulafunding. Add to the
December board meeting agenda.

Recorded: Mary McArthur, Col-Pac EDD and NWOTA Coordinator

NWOTA Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes (11-8-19) 3|Page

2]



| :95eq UBLIRA 29 198png (LA/M Hoday qOI A[yruon
%LY'8 29°v01°L8T 00°000° %1€ 8€°565°9C £8°0CCL £9°280°11
%L0°S 00°061°9¢ 00°061°6S 00°000°¢ 00°0 00°0
%00°0 00°061°9¢ 00°061°9¢ 000 000 000
%00°001 00°0 00°000°¢ 00°000°¢ 00°0 00°0
%9C°6 9VITIET 00°018%ST 8€°S65°€T £8°0TS°L £9°L80°11
%000 00°000°¢ 00°000°S 00°0 o L9011y 000
%00°0 00°09¢¥91 0009891 00°0 00°0 000
%rEET LETIV9E 00°00S°LY £€9°L80°L1 £E€'856°¢ €9'L80°11
%9998 00°000°1 00°00¢°L 00°005°9 00°€29 000
%E0'VT §TT66°81 00°000°cT SL°L009 €€7€80C 000
%000 00°05T°¢ 00°0ST°S 000 0¢Ley 000
%911 (00°000°8L7) 00°000%1¢ 00°000°9¢ 00°000°C1 000

%00°0 (00°000°6%1) 00°000°6¥1 000 000 000
%00°001 00°0 00°000°C1 00°000°CI 000 000
%00°0¢ (00°000+%2) 00°000°8¥ 00°000'+C 00°000°C1 000
%00°0 (00°000°¢01) 00°000°¢01 000 000 000

%l QQUBLIR A 128png [e10], [enioy 128png poLag [endy poldd

193png [BI0L

Jea X 1ualnm)

ua.un)) jLiteARtNg]

6107/0€/11 YSNOIYL, 6107/1/11 WOL]
Jusw9le)S [RIoURLL |

1181 nonelrodsuea ], Ajuno)) Joowey[L],

0816
0€l6

0zes
lel¢
061¢
01¢
[0ES
00I¢

8l6v
L6y
sy
00s¢

INd #¥:01-C1 61/£/C1 @1

sasuadxq [e10],
SI9JSUBI] [B10]
req pun, Surpuy pareudoiddeun
pun,j [eIauar) o} J9jSuel ]
SIaJsuel]
SIDIAIDS PUE S[BLIAIEA] [B10],
duiurel] 2 [9aBI]
u3ISa(q-2y MSIIM
Sunaye
2DOUBUIUIBIA 9IS M
yoddng sanensiunupy
S201AI2G [BUOISS3JO1]
SIDIAIDG pUR S[BLISJBIA]
sasuadxyg

$90IN0SY [BI0L
pun,{ J[LS WOIj JoJSuel],
pun,{ [eIoUar) WoJ,j I3JSurI]
YIJeN 0D Luled VIOMN
[ende) Suryiopm

S20.IN0SY



NW OREGON TRANSIT ALLIANCE MEETING SCHEDULE 2020

Meetings are held the 2nd Friday of the month
Tillamook County Transportation District
3600 31 St
Tillamook, OR
503-970-3336

January January 10th 10:00am—2:00pm
February February 14th 10:00am—2:00pm
March March 13t 10:00am—2:00pm
April April 10th 10:00am—2:00pm
May May 8t 10:00amM—2:00pm
June June 12t 10:00am—2:00pm
July July 10th 10:00am—2:00pm
August August 14t 10:00am—2:00pm
September 11th 10:00am—2:00pm

ovember November 13t 10:00am—2:00pm
December December 11th 10:00am—2:00pm

3 S AERPIRRAAL:
e typ] t‘:ﬂ'b} Co0ord

o : L e LI L | P et e
ina meeting with the conference

Dates—W

g



JeD OU - yoeag pue
1sejyealg ‘pag - siawoog
paJinbal

puMJed ou Yyiim un4
|eAINSOH - SIS00) JUSAT
SJINIUBAPY |B1SROD
9944-1BD - SUDMIH/SioMIg

un4

Allude aaldj-1ed) - saljiule

1SPO0D)

obed SU] 01 8pIy 21IUBUIOY

YO0Qga0eH UO 1SO4 m - $9|dN0D BUNOA

yoeag oyl 1e Ae

sobed @C_Ucm_ ]300 = 99.14-1eD) Vv - sJaddii] Ae(

SPY ~100Q=0k4 Ul 95 W S9|1J0Jd
91ISgOM O PPY W JOUI0ISND) UO paseqg m
AO1I9UUOD MN

10} salieiaul}| ajdwes




Regular Meeting 11/21/2019
Tillamook County Transportation District AT
Board of Directors Regular Monthly Meeting
Thursday, November 21, 2019 — 6:30PM
Transportation Building
3600 Third Street, Tillamook, OR
Meeting Minutes

1. Call to Order: Board Chair Judy Riggs called the meeting to order at 6:34pm
2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Calt:
Present
TCTD Board of Directors
Judy Riggs, Board Chair
Gary Hanenkrat, Treasurer
Jim Huffman, Secretary
Marty Holm, Vice Chair
Jackie Edwards, Director
Melissa Carlson-Swanson, Director (via telephone at 6:35pm)
Linda Adler, Director

TCTD Staff

Doug Pilant, General Manager

Brent Olson, Superintendent

Tabatha Welch, Finance Supervisor

Cathy Bond, NW Rides Manager/Board Clerk

Absent
None.

Guest
Arla Miller, Regional Transit Coordinator, ODOT Rail & Public Transit
Chris Kell, public
Rich Allm, WHA Insurance
4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda: 1) Remove Action ltem Resolution

5. Public & Guest Comments:

Chris Kell said she is really impressed with the transit access project and felt it was
put together well.

6. Executive Session — 6:37pm to 7:20pm.
The following motion was made as a result of executive session:

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

1 2 |



Regular Meeting 11/21/2019

Motion by Director Holm to approve the terms of the SDIS/Regence healthcare plan as

outlined in the TCTD/ATU Memorandum of Understanding dated November 11, 2019.

Motion Seconded by Director Huffman. Board Chair Judy Riggs called for further
discussion; followed by none, she called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Huffman, Carlson-Swanson,

Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Judy Riggs.

REPORTS

7. Financial Report: GM Doug Pilant reviewed the October 2019 financial reports. The
District will begin receiving property tax monies over the next couple of months.
Director Hanenkrat inquired on Iltem 14843, release of claim. Superintendent Olson
explained it was a vehicle incident that the District paid regarding a mirror incident.
Directed Huffman asked if the what the attorney fees represented. GM Doug Pilant
explained it was for purchase of transit center and a grievance. The transit center
deal is being partitioned so the progress is good.

8. Service Measure Performance Report: GM Doug Pilant reviewed performance
measures with the Board.

YTD Ridership overall has increased 2.6% change over the previous year. The YTD
passengers per hour are +4.6%, the cost per trip was +3.8% while the cost per hour
was +8.6% and the fare box return was -5.0%.

9. Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance: GM Doug Pilant reviewed the NWOTA meeting
agenda, minutes, finance report with the Board.

GM Doug Pilant provided a broad overview of the Northwest Oregon Transit Access
Project. Director Huffman asked if there’'s a timeline for these projects. GM Doug
Pilant stated there is no current timeline. Director Adler asked how the buses will turn
around at the proposed Pacific City stop. GM Doug Pilant stated the buses already
turn around by going around the block from Pine to Alder. GM Doug Pilant explained
that the ODOT ADA Class Action Lawsuit required facility projects be designed to
meet ADA standards. Arla Miller explained further that if the project can be timed with
State projects it will save the District money. She further explained how it relates to
the Highway Design Manual and the standards.

GM Doug Pilant provided a broad overview of the NW Connector Marketing
Recommendations for FY 2019/20. GM Doug Pilant reported the TCTD and
Greyhound interline agreement has been implemented and that 2 passengers used
Greyhound tickets to Tillamook in November. NWOTA now has a Facebook page.
The other recommendation is to advertise inside of the buses. Trip Planner RFPs are
due in the next few weeks. The selected consultant is planned to be approved by the
board at the December board meeting. Director Huffman asked about a NWOTA
action item regarding a travel options page on the website. GM Doug Pilant isn't sure
where the partners are on this item, that it was a “Transportation Options” page but at
the end of the day it was agreed to be allowed within the Sunset Empire's webpage
for now.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

2 —

Vo, f -
* AT



Regular Meeting 11/21/2019

10.Planning & Development:

a. Cape Kiawanda — No update

b. Dial a ride fare policy. District has 1 full year of reliable data for planning. Now
focusing on the accuracy of trip purposes.

c. STIF service delivery alternatives — Consultant is developing onboard surveys
for Routes 1,2,4. Hope to complete the survey by Christmas.

d. No update from Consolidated committee. STF is trending lower than the last
projection from December 2018.

11.Grant Funding
a. ODOT announced new grant funding opportunities. Grants due near the end
of January 2020.

12.Facility/Property Management

a. Building wiring — BMF low voltage wiring project is nearing completion.

b. Building signage scheduled to be completed and the parking lot signage is in
the process of being completed.

c. Post Office Bus Stop: Waiting for final comments from Hoquarton Interpretive
Center. Bus shelter has been. Found a concrete company to do the work.
Waiting for City to finalize their piece.

d. Propane fueling facility. Planning is in progress. The terms of the STIF grant
agreement for the propane fueling system is different than past agreements
and legal counsel is reviewing before we move forward.

13.NW Ride Brokerage
a. No additional updates.

14.Miscellaneous
a. Timber County Class Action Lawsuit. It was announced that the State violating
the Timber County agreement and awarded $1 billion in damages. Governor
Brown announced the State is going to appeal.
b. Mobile Clinic — pulled from agenda while the attorney works on an IGA. Should
have further information in December.

Director Huffman noted there’s an article in today’s Oregonian. Director Hanenkrat asked
about if the GM got the passenger number count for Cloverdale. GM Doug Pilant
explained that the District does not record unique individuals. He reported that he spoke
with several drivers who drive Route 4 and who told him there are approximately 12-15
unique riders boarding or alighting buses in Cloverdale.

CONSENT CALENDAR
15. Motion to Approve the Minutes of October 24, 2019 Board Workshop
16. Motion: Acceptance of Financial Report: October 2019

Motion by Director Holm to adopt the Consent Calendar. Motion Seconded by Director
Adler. Board Chair Judy Riggs called for further discussion; followed by none, she called
for the vote.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker's exact words.

v /"‘.‘



Regular Meeting 11/21/2019

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Huffman, Carlson-Swanson,
Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Judy Riggs.

ACTION ITEMS
17. None

DISCUSSION ITEMS
18.Strategic Plan — Bill and John want to schedule another session sometime in
December from 4:30-5:00pm to approximately 8-8:30pm. He asked when the Board
would have availability to meet again. The board agreed to Monday, December 9" @
4:30pm. During LRTDP Kittelson looked at the Strategic Business Plan. He has
included the Tech Memo for the Board to review.
19. Staff Comments/Concerns
GM Doug Pilant: Talked to Ronny but can’t remember the joke he wanted to share.
Shared his last jury duty experience.
Superintendent Brent Olson: Brent shared a small joke.
Finance Supervisor Tabatha Welch: None.
NWR Manager/Board Clerk Cathy Bond: Reminding Board about holiday party.
20.Board of Directors Comments/Concerns
Jim Huffman — He recommends all the Board attend the SDAO conference as it is a
valuable for anyone who is interested and highly recommends the conference.
Director Holm agrees and recommends it especially for new board members.
Judy Riggs — Went to County Commissions meeting last week. Had a chance to
express some comments the board had regarding the shuttle service and the goal that
the District be reimbursed at some point for the services. Commissioner Yamamoto
pointed out that it is built into the budget. She said it was a good meeting and she
found it very interesting. Also wished everyone a safe and happy Thanksgiving.
Marty Holm — None.
Jackie Edwards — None.
Gary Hanenkrat — None.
Linda Adler — None.
Melissa Carlson-Swanson — Happy Thanksgiving and safe travels next week.

UPCOMING EVENTS
Adjournment: Board Chair Riggs adjourned the meeting at 8:38pm.

These minutes approved this 19* day of December, 2019.

ATTEST:

Judy Riggs, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

4 =



REVISED

Tillamook County Transportation District
Annual Board Meeting

Schedule for 2020
January * January 23, 2020
February February 20, 2020
March March 19, 2020
April* April 23, 2020
May May 21, 2020
June (adopt budget) June 18, 2020
July* July 23, 2020
August August 20, 2020
September September 17, 2020
October* October 22, 2020
November November 19, 2020
December December 17, 2020

The Board of Directors typically meets on the 3@ Thursday of each month unless
the meeting has been rescheduled for the purposes listed below. Board
Meetings are always scheduled at the TCTD Transportation Building at 6:30pm
in the Bob Kenny Board Hearing Room at 3600 Third Street, Tillamook Oregon
97141.

*Moved to the 41" Thursday to provide adequate time to complete financial and
service performance reports for board packet.



January 23, 2020
@ Board Meeting

March 19, 2020
@ Board Meeting

April 17, 2020

April 23, 2020
@ Board Meeting

April 23, 2020

Aprit 21, 2020
(due by 4/16/20)

May 5, 2020
(due by 4/30/19)

May 14, 2020

June 9, 2020
(due by 6/4/20)

June 18, 2019
@ Board Meeting

July 20, 2020

September 01, 2020

Tillamook County Transportation District
Budget Calendar
FY 2020 - 2021

Appoint Budget Officer

Appoint New Budget Committee Members (if necessary)
Review Draft Budget with Treasurer

Distribute Draft Budget to Board

Distribute Draft Budget to Budget Committee

Publish First Notice of Budget Committee Meeting (22 days prior to meeting.)
Notice of the budget committee meeting(s) must state the purpose, time and place
of the meeting(s); that the meeting is a public meeting. Notice must be published
not earlier than 30 days prior to first meeting and not later than 5 days prior to the
first meeting. First publication notice must be separated from the second
publication notice by at least 5 days.

Publish Second Notice of Budget Committee Meeting (8 days prior to meeting.)
Notice must be published not earlier than 5 days prior to first meeting.

Budget Committee Meeting Present budget message and comprehensive outline
of the proposed 2020-2021 budget. Public comment will be taken. Next budget
meeting (if necessary) will be scheduled at this meeting.

Publish Notice of Budget Hearing (8 days prior to budget hearing.) Notice must
be published not earlier than 30 days prior to first meeting and not later than 5 days
prior to the first meeting. Notice must include Forms LB-1, 2 and 3.

Budget Public Hearing Hold public hearing on the budget as approved by the
budget committee. Expenditure adjustments, if any, are restricted to $5,000 or
10%, whichever is greater, of the amount approved for each fund by the budget
committee. Board adopts budget by resolution to appropriate funds and impose and
categorize taxes.

Deadline to Certify the 2019-2019 Tax Levy to the County Assessor Deliver
two copies each of the Tax Certification LB-50, Resolution Adopting the Budget and
LB-20, LB-30, LB-31, LB-11's.

Deliver Adopted Resolution and Budget to Tillamook County Clerk.

Please note that bolded action items are required by budget law



TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Policy: DRUG AND ALCOHOL POLICY Number: 12

Adopted by the Board of Directors on November 20, 2008
Revised by the Board of Directors on 3/19/15; January 18, 2018; | Pages: 8
and December 19, 2019. Effective Date: December 20, 2019

Purpose of Policy

This policy complies with 49 CFR Part 655, as amended and 49 CFR Part 40, as
amended. Copies of Parts 655 and 40 are available in the drug and alcohol program
manager's office and can be found on the internet at the Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) Drug and Alcohol Program website http://transit-
safety.fta.dot.gov/DrugAndAlcohol/.

All covered employees are required to submit to drug and alcohol tests as a
condition of employment in accordance with 49 CFR Part 655.

Portions of this policy are not FTA-mandated, but reflect Tillamook County
Transportation District's policy. These additional provisions are identified by bold
text.

In addition, DOT has published 49 CFR Part 32, implementing the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988, which requires the establishment of drug-free workplace
policies and the reporting of certain drug-related offenses to the FTA.

All Tillamook County Transportation District employees are subject to the
provisions of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988.

The unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or use of a
controlled substance is prohibited in the covered workplace. An employee who is
convicted of any criminal drug statute for a violation occurring in the workplace shall
notify Operations Superintendent no later than five days after such conviction.

Covered Employees

This policy applies to every person, including an applicant or transferee, who
performs or will perform a “safety-sensitive function” as defined in Part 655, section
655.4.

You are a covered employee if you perform any of the following:
e Operating a revenue service vehicle, in or out of revenue service
e Operating a non-revenue vehicle requiring a commercial driver’s license
¢ Controlling movement or dispatch of a revenue service vehicle

e Maintaining (including repairs, overhaul and rebuilding) of a revenue
service vehicle or equipment used in revenue service

e Carrying a firearm for security purposes -
A j

Page 10of 7



See Attachment A for a list of covered positions by job title.
Prohibited Behavior

Use of illegal drugs is prohibited at all times. All covered employees are prohibited
from reporting for duty or remaining on duty any time there is a quantifiable presence
of a prohibited drug in the body at or above the minimum thresholds defined in Part
40. Prohibited drugs include:

e marijuana

e cocaine
¢ phencyclidine (PCP)
e oOpioids

e amphetamines
All covered employees are prohibited from performing or continuing to perform
safety-sensitive functions while having an alcohol concentration of 0.04 or greater.

All covered employees are prohibited from consuming alcohol while performing
safety-sensitive job functions or while on-call to perform safety-sensitive job
functions. If an on-call employee has consumed alcohol, they must acknowledge the
use of alcohol at the time that they are called to report for duty. If the on-call
employee claims the ability to perform his or her safety-sensitive function, he or she
must take an alcohol test with a result of less than 0.02 prior to performance.

All covered employees are prohibited from consuming alcohol within four (4) hours
prior to the performance of safety-sensitive job functions.

All covered employees are prohibited from consuming alcohol for eight (8) hours
following involvement in an accident or until he or she submits to the post-accident
drug and alcohol test, whichever occurs first.

Consequences for Violations

Following a positive drug or alcohol (BAC at or above 0.04) test result or test refusal,
the employee will be immediately removed from safety-sensitive duty and referred to
a Substance Abuse Professional.

Following a BAC of 0.02 or greater, but less than 0.04, the employee will be
immediately removed from safety-sensitive duties for at least eight hours unless a
retest results in the employee’s alcohol concentration being less than 0.02.

Zero Tolerance

Per Tillamook County Transportation District policy, any employee who tests positive
for drugs or alcohol (BAC at or above 0.04) or refuses to test will be referred to a
Substance Abuse Professional (SAP) and terminated from employment.

Circumstances for Testing

Pre-Employment Testing

A negative pre-employment drug test result is required before an employee can first
perform safety-sensitive functions. If a pre-employment test is cancelled, the

Page 2 of 7

>

2%

C

S



individual will be required to undergo another test and successfully pass with a
verified negative result before performing safety-sensitive functions.

If a covered employee has not performed a safety-sensitive function for 90 or more

consecutive calendar days, and has not been in the random testing pool during that
time, the employee must take and pass a pre-employment test before he or she can
return to a safety-sensitive function.

A covered employee or applicant who has previously failed or refused a DOT pre-
employment drug and/or alcohol test must provide proof of having successfully
completed a referral, evaluation, and treatment plan meeting DOT requirements.

Reasonable Suspicion Testing

All covered employees shall be subject to a drug and/or alcohol test when Tillamook
County Transportation District has reasonable suspicion to believe that the covered
employee has used a prohibited drug and/or engaged in alcohol misuse. A
reasonable suspicion referral for testing will be made by a trained supervisor or other
trained company official on the basis of specific, contemporaneous, articulable
observations concerning the appearance, behavior, speech, or body odors of the
covered employee.

Covered employees may be subject to reasonable suspicion drug testing any time
while on duty. Covered employees may be subject to reasonable suspicion alcohol
testing while the employee is performing safety-sensitive functions, just before the
employee is to perform safety-sensitive functions, or just after the employee has
ceased performing such functions.

Post-Accident Testing

Covered employees shall be subject to post-accident drug and alcohol testing under
the following circumstances:

Fatal Accidents

As soon as practicable following an accident involving the loss of a human life,
drug and alcohol tests will be conducted on each surviving covered employee
operating the public transportation vehicle at the time of the accident. In addition,
any other covered employee whose performance could have contributed to the
accident, as determined by Tillamook County Transportation District using the
best information available at the time of the decision, will be tested.

Non-fatal Accidents

As soon as practicable following an accident not involving the loss of a human
life, drug and alcohol tests will be conducted on each covered employee
operating the public transportation vehicle at the time of the accident if at least
one of the following conditions is met:

(1) The accident results in injuries requiring immediate medical treatment
away from the scene, unless the covered employee can be completely
discounted as a contributing factor to the accident

Page 3of 7



(2) One or more vehicles incurs disabling damage and must be towed away
from the scene, unless the covered employee can be completely
discounted as a contributing factor to the accident

(3) The vehicle is a rail car, trolley car or bus, or vessel, and is removed from
operation, unless the covered employee can be completely discounted as
a contributing factor to the accident

In addition, any other covered employee whose performance could have
contributed to the accident, as determined by Tillamook County Transportation
District using the best information available at the time of the decision, will be
tested.

A covered employee subject to post-accident testing must remain readily
available, or it is considered a refusal to test. Nothing in this section shall be
construed to require the delay of necessary medical attention for the injured
following an accident or to prohibit a covered employee from leaving the scene of
an accident for the period necessary to obtain assistance in responding to the
accident or to obtain necessary emergency medical care.

Random Testing

Random drug and alcohol tests are unannounced and unpredictable, and the
dates for administering random tests are spread reasonably throughout the
calendar year. Random testing will be conducted at all times of the day when
safety-sensitive functions are performed.

Testing rates will meet or exceed the minimum annual percentage rate set each
year by the FTA administrator. The current year testing rates can be viewed
online at www.transportation.gov/odapc/random-testing-rates.

The selection of employees for random drug and alcohol testing will be made by
a scientifically valid method, such as a random number table or a computer-
based random number generator. Under the selection process used, each
covered employee will have an equal chance of being tested each time
selections are made.

A covered employee may only be randomly tested for alcohol misuse while the
employee is performing safety-sensitive functions, just before the employee is to
perform safety-sensitive functions, or just after the employee has ceased
performing such functions. A covered employee may be randomly tested for
prohibited drug use anytime while on duty.

Each covered employee who is notified of selection for random drug or random
alcohol testing must immediately proceed to the designated testing site.

Random Testing — End of Shift

Random testing may occur anytime an employee is on duty so long as the

employee is notified prior to the end of the shift. Employees who provide

advance, verifiable notice of scheduled medical or child care commitments will be Vi
Page 4 of 7 L\. U

!



random drug tested no later than three hours before the end of their shift and
random alcohol tested no later than 30 minutes before the end of their shift.
Verifiable documentation of a previously scheduled medical or child care
commitment, for the period immediately following an employee’s shift, must be
provided at least 30 minutes. before the end of the shift.

Testing Procedures

All FTA drug and alcohol testing will be conducted in accordance with 49 CFR Part
40, as amended.

Dilute Urine Specimen

If there is a negative dilute test result, Tilamook County Transportation District will
conduct one additional retest. The result of the second test will be the test of record.

Dilute negative results with a creatinine level greater than or equal to 2 mg/dL but
less than or equal to 5 mg/dL require an immediate recollection under direct
observation (see 49 CFR Part 40, section 40.67).

Split Specimen Test

In the event of a verified positive test result, or a verified adulterated or substituted
result, the employee can request that the split specimen be tested at a second
laboratory. Tillamook County Transportation District guarantees that the split
specimen test will be conducted in a timely fashion.

Test Refusals

As a covered employee, you have refused to test if you:

(1)  Fail to appear for any test (except a pre-employment test) within a
reasonable time, as determined by Tillamook County Transportation
District.

(2) Fail to remain at the testing site until the testing process is complete. An
employee who leaves the testing site before the testing process
commences for a pre-employment test has not refused to test.

(3) Fail to attempt to provide a breath or urine specimen. An employee who
does not provide a urine or breath specimen because he or she has left
the testing site before the testing process commenced for a pre-
employment test has not refused to test.

(4) Inthe case of a directly-observed or monitored urine drug collection, fail to
permit monitoring or observation of your provision of a specimen.

(6) Fail to provide a sufficient quantity of urine or breath without a valid
medical explanation.

(6) Fail or decline to take a second test as directed by the collector or
Tillamook County Transportation District for drug testing.

Page 5of 7



(7)  Fail to undergo a medical evaluation as required by the MRO or Tillamook
County Transportation District’'s Designated Employer Representative
(DER).

(8) Fail to cooperate with any part of the testing process.

(9) Fail to follow an observer's instructions to raise and lower clothing and
turn around during a directly-observed test.

(10) Possess or wear a prosthetic or other device used to tamper with the
collection process.

(11)  Admit to the adulteration or substitution of a specimen to the collector or
MRO.

(12)  Refuse to sign the certification at Step 2 of the Alcohol Testing Form
(ATF).

(13)  Fail to remain readily available following an accident.

As a covered employee, if the MRO reports that you have a verified adulterated or
substituted test result, you have refused to take a drug test.

As a covered employee, if you refuse to take a drug and/or alcohol test, you incur
the same consequences as testing positive and will be immediately removed from
performing safety-sensitive functions, and referred to a SAP.

Prescription Drug Use

The appropriate use of legally prescribed drugs and non-prescription
medications is not prohibited. However, the use of any substance which
carries a warning label that indicates that mental functioning, motor skills, or
judgment may be adversely affected must be reported to Operations
Superintendent. Medical advice should be sought, as appropriate, while
taking such medication and before performing safety-sensitive duties.

Contact Person

For questions about Tillamook County Transportation District’s anti-drug and alcohol
misuse program, contact Operations Superintendent or Operations Coordinator.

Page 6 of 7 ]"\



Attachment A: Covered Positions

e Transit Drivers

¢ Operations Superintendent
¢ Operations Coordinator

e Lot Attendant

e Dispatch

/';I
Page 7 of 7 D\)



Memorandum of Understanding

This Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") is made and entered into by
and between the Tillamook County Transportation District, an Oregon
Transportation District (hereinafter "District"), acting by and through its Board of
Directors, and Northwest Medical Foundation of Tillamook dba Adventist Health
Tillamook, an Oregon non-profit (hereinafter referred to as "AHTM") and D. Rivers
LLC as landlord (hereinafter referred to as “Landlord”) .

WHEREAS, District operates a public transportation services in Tillamook,
Lincoln, Polk and Marion Counties; and

WHEREAS, District has identified a need to park a District vehicle, which
may include a bus, van or other District vehicle for dial-a-ride service in Pacific
City, OR; and

WHEREAS, AHTM operates a medical clinic and has available space for
the parking and staging of a District vehicle at its Pacific City, OR facility with
address of 38505 Brooten Road, Suite A, Pacific City, OR 97135; and

WHEREAS, Landlord owns the property leased by AHTM for operations
of a medical clinic with associated parking with address of 38505 Brooten Road,
Suite A, Pacific City, OR 97135 with available space for the parking and staging
of a District vehicle; and

WHEREAS, Adventist Health Bayshore Medical Pacific City patients and
employees may benefit from using the District transportation dial-a-ride services;
and .

WHEREAS, economies of scale and other savings and efficiencies may
be achieved by District.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises expressed
herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the adequacy and sufficiency
of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Parking of District Vehicle

The parties agree to work together to identify an appropriate parking area
for the staging and parking of a District dial-a-ride service vehicle, and any
District driver's personal vehicle while driving the District vehicle, on the property
located at 38505 Brooten Road, Suite A, Pacific City, OR 97135.

2. Adventist Health Tillamook and D. Rivers LLC Obligation

Memorandum of Understanding: District and Northwest Medical Foundation of Tillamook Page 1 q L_{



AHTM and D. Rivers LLC shall designate the parking location in a non-patient
parking area and ensure that it is available and used only for the parking of the District
dial-a-ride service vehicle. The District driver assigned to drive the dial-a-ride service
vehicle may park his/her vehicle at the clinic location in a non-patient designated area
during the time he/she is driving the District vehicle. AHTM or D. Rivers LLC, in their
mutual discretion, may terminate the right of the District to park a dial-a-ride service
vehicle on clinic property for any reason on thirty (30) days written notice to the District.

3. District Obligation

District shall designate the vehicle to be assigned to park at the clinic facility
for the dial-a-ride service. District shall advise AHTM clinic staff of the dial-a-ride
schedule and the assigned driver(s).

4. NMutual Indemnification

a. The District assumes and agrees to indemnify and hold harmless
Northwest Medical Foundation of Tillamook and D. Rivers LLC, its officers,
directors, shareholders, agents, members and employees from any loss, cost or
expense, including attorney fees and other costs and expenses of litigation
through and including trials and appeals, arising from any claim against the
District or Northwest Medical Foundation of Tillamook and D. Rivers LLC, its
officers, directors, shareholders, agents, members and employees based on
District's conduct or the conduct of any of District's employees, agents, directors,
or independent contractors hired by District for personal injury, negligence or any
other allegedly wrongful conduct arising from the parking of a District vehicle on
property located at 38505 Brooten Road, Suite A, Pacific City, OR 97135.

b. Northwest Medical Foundation of Tillamook and D. Rivers LLC
assumes and agrees to indemnify and hold harmless District, its officers,
directors, agents, and employees from any loss, cost or expense, including
attorney fees and other costs and expenses of litigation through and including
trials and appeals, arising from any claim against Northwest Medical Foundation
of Tillamook or D. Rivers LLC or the District, its officers, directors, agents, and
employees based on Adventist Health Tillamook or D. Rivers LLC’s conduct or
the conduct of any of Adventist Health Tillamook or D. Rivers LLC’s employees,
agents, directors, or independent contractors hired by Adventist Health Tillamook
or D. Rivers LLC for personal injury, negligence or any other allegedly wrongful
conduct arising from the parking of a District vehicle on property located at 39505
Brooten Road, Suite A, Pacific City, OR 97135.

5. Miscellaneous

a. This Agreement may be signed in counterparts and when signed becomes
binding on the respective party.

)

—

Memorandum of Understanding: District and Northwest Medical Foundation of Tillamook Page 2 !\ (,



b. This Agreement is completely integrated and contains the final expression
of the terms of the relationship between the parties hereto.

c. The signatures of the respective parties is authorized by the respective
governing body of the party to be bound and no party may challenge the
sufficiency of the respective parties signer.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this MOU has been approved by the respective
governing authority of each party as of the date set forth below.

TILLAMOOK COUNTY NORTHWEST MEDICAL
TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT FOUNDATION OF TILLAMOOK dba
Adventist Health Tillamook

By: By:

Date: Date:
D. RIVERS, LLC
By:
Date:

Memorandum of Understanding: District and Northwest Medical Foundation of Tillamook Page 3 ]{ k



For Board Meeting of December 19, 2019
Agenda ltem # 19

MEMO TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: DOUG PILANT, GENERAL MANAGER 27 /Y~
SUBJECT: ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF COMPENSATION PLAN
Issue

Shall the Board establish a revised Administrative Staff Compensation Plan?

Background and Findings

1.

6.

The Board of Directors establishes wages and salaries for the District’s
administrative staff and authorizes the General Manager to take steps to implement
the compensation plan.

The District engaged Heidi Mason from Innova Legal Advisors to analyze the current
administrative responsibilities of the District, evaluate the distribution of
administrative duties, and develop recommendations to enhance the administrative
efficiency and sustainability.

On October 24, 2019 the Board adopted Resolution 19-35, establishing a new
administrative staffing plan, creating new positions, and reclassifying several existing
positions.

After completion of the recommended staffing plan, Heidi Mason conducted an
Administrative Compensation Review where comparisons were made to the
compensation levels of other similar positions along the Oregon Coast, please see
Attachment A.

The following table lists the recommended positions and compensation plan to be
adopted and implemented:

Position Salary Range
Administrative Assistant $15.09 to $23.00
Office Assistant $14.16 to $21.54
Financial Supervisor $25.73 to $41.38
Brokerage Manager $26.28 to $42.14
Brokerage Supervisor $21.04 to $30.67
Brokerage CSR & Scheduler $15.18 t0 $21.13
Operations Superintendent $23.47 to $42.04
Operations Coordinator $15.72 10 $24.62
Transit Center CSR $11.73 to $15.63

Implementation of the recommended staffing and compensation plan will be neutral
to the District’s fiscal year budget.

Tl



For Board Meeting of December 19, 2019
Agenda ltem # 19

Recommendation

Staff recommends the Board approve Resolution 15-36 authorizing the General
Manager to implement a revised Administrative Staff Compensation Plan.



For Board Meeting of December 19, 2019
Agenda ltem # 19

ATTACHMENT A

The U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS) collects wage information from
employers across the county. The data is publicly available at no cost and can be
accessed, by occupation, for the nation, specific regions, states, and many
metropolitan and nonmetropolitan areas. BLS classifies wage information using
the Standard Occupational Classification (SOC) system.

Innova Legal Advisors compared the job duties required for each District job
position along with those listed in Resolution 19-36 to the 2018 Standard
Occupational Classification System to evaluate which occupations most closely
matched the District’s positions. We then extracted wage information for the
relevant occupations at both the national level and the local level. At the national
level, we examined wage data in the local government industry, excluding
schools and hospitals. In other words, we excluded all private sector, national
government, state government, school, and hospital wage information in order to
get a better sense of local government compensation. At the local level, we
examined wage data for the relevant occupations in the Coast Oregon
nonmetropolitan area. This included all industries, public and private.

Through this analysis, we identified the following wage data points for each
District position: Mean, 10" percentile, 25" percentile, median, 75" percentile,
and 90" percentile. The Salary/Wage ranges listed in Resolution 19-36 are
derived from the Coast Oregon nonmetropolitan area data. The beginning of
each range generally represents the 25" percentile wage for that occupation.
The cap generally represents the 75" percentile wage for the occupation.



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

In the Matter of Adopting
a Revised Administrative
Employee Compensation

Plan for the District RESOLUTION NO. 19-36

R L S

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors for the Tillamook County Transportation District
has the budget authority to set wages and salaries for the District; and

WHEREAS, the District engaged Heidi Mason from Innova Legal Advisors to
analyze the current administrative responsibilities of the District, evaluate the distribution
of administrative duties, and develop recommendations to enhance administrative
efficiency and sustainability; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to such recommendations, the District adopted Resolution
No. 19-35 on October 24, 2019, establishing a new administrative employee staffing plan,
creating new positions, and reclassifying several existing positions; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to establish wages and salaries for each new position
created by Resolution No. 19-35; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to adjust the wages and salary ranges for positions
reclassified by Resolution No. 19-35; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors:

1. Effective January 1, 2020, the Board establishes the following compensation
schedule for the following District administrative employees:

Position Salary/Wage Range
Administrative Assistant $15.09 to $23.00
Office Assistant $14.16 to $21.54
Financial Supervisor $25.73 to $41.38
Brokerage Manager $26.28 to $42.14
Brokerage Supervisor $21.04 to $30.67
Brokerage CSR $15.18 t0 $21.13
Operations Superintendent $23.47 to $42.04
Operations Coordinator $15.72 t0 $24.62
Transit Center CSR } $11.73 to $15.63

2. The General Manager of the District shall take all steps necessary to implement
this Resolution.



INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 19" day of December 2019.

ATTEST:

By: By:

Judy Riggs, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Authorizing the General Manager )
to Purchase one Ford Transit )
van from Schetky NW Sales ) RESOLUTION NO. 19-37

WHEREAS, the Tillamook County Transportation District received a $75,000
ODOT RPTD Section 5310 grant to purchase a dial-a-ride van; and

WHEREAS, the District solicited quotes from four retailers for the purchase of a
vans based on the price agreement the retailers have with the State of Oregon
Department of Administrative Services; and

WHEREAS, based on the quotes provided and District’s preferred specifications,
the District recommends purchasing a Ford Transit van from Schetky NW for $76.201;
and

WHEREAS, purchasing a bus through the competitively bid contract between
Schetky NW and the State would provide significant cost savings to the District, would
not reduce competition or give favoritism, and would be in the best interest of the District.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors:

that the Board authorizes the General Manager to enter a contract not to exceed
$76,201 with Schetky NW Sales to purchase one Ford Transit Category E-2, van.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 19" day of December 2019.

ATTEST:

By: By:
Judy Riggs, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager




UO9IRS BIALBA 1507 158MOT

LONEIUBWINIOE 3SEYDINd 3IJIYRA

UOISIAIG ISUEI L, 24aNd 1000

:aumpeubis jo ajeq

:aAneuasasday Aouaby jo aunjeubig

SGL1E.2P8-€09

1abeuepy |e1susD) ‘uejd Bnog

(mojoq Jojus) ssaippe [lew-3 / "ON suoyd

(mojaq api) pue aweu pajund 1sjus) aanejuasasday Aousby

sjuswwo)
pa329J9g JON O PaJOsI9g JON X P3Jod[AG JON X pa329[9g 10N [
1p9129]ag 9IDIYSA 1S0) }SBMOT]
pajoeles O Po199I9g 0 pojooles O pajolles Y i
. :suondQ palidjald pue suonesyioadsg
B 03 o POT'9LS pa1nbay UM ISOD 3DIUBA [EIOL
:(auou J 019z 13jus - Aue
o8 J1) suondQ paiajald |euonippy Jo 309
R o8 isuopesyidoadg
U O 0 Loz'aL painbay [y UM ISOD 3J9IUSA (1oL
262'02$ :suonesyoadg pannbay jo 3s09
6Y'SS$ :9011d ased 9|9IYdA
pig ON pIg ON Jsuel | pi1o4 [BOION 0Z0Z :pasodoid [9PON/ONEIN JIIYIA
110pUaA sajeg sng MN :JOPUBA SNg dAlledal) [IOpPUBA MN Ajjaysg :iopuap

(mojog suwIn|oY ui SsWeN JOpPuIA 1asu]) SHOANIA WOHL4 d3L0ND S3DNId

(uawnoop 4o 3sl) yoeny) J8Y0 O

:suondQ palayald [eUOHIPPY

(wioy sy pulyaq s,04Y 11E Yaene) DAY woid Y

(3uawinoop 10 3s1f YaeNY) JISYIO O

(w10} S143 pURq S04 lIE UeRE) DAY Woly Y

:suopeosy1sadg paiinbay

4

‘suonels vav jo 'oN

G :sjeag Je|nbay jo "oN

| :paseyoind ag o] SIOIYS3A JO 'ON

13 :AioBeje) ey nyasn ofoIYaA

NOILDT T3S LSOO LSIMOT - WO NOSIdVdNOD 04 LINTFWIFHOV JOldd FLVLIS

GL1Le-Z¥8-€0S 'ON suoyd

6L/9/¢L :°¥ed

009€€ "ON Juswdalby juel

juejid Bnog :uosiad 10B)UOY

TT3913s1q Uuonepodsuesj AJunod ooweji| :awepN Asusby




REQUEST FOR TRANSIT VEHICLE PRICE QUOTE
(RFQ)

This is (check appropriate):

< Initial Request for Quote (from Requesting Agency to Vendors)
Due Date: December 6, 2019

Xl Response to RFQ (from Responding Vendor back to Requesting Agency)

X Grant Funded Purchase 33600

VENDOR (Business Name): SCHETKY NORTHWEST SALES, INC
Vendor Contact Person: CHASE SCHETKY Phone: 503-607-3141

Email Address: CHASES@SCHETKYNW.COM Ait Phone: 503-730-8383

X] Meets Buy America Standards (49 USC § 5323(j); 49 CFR part 661

REQUESTING AGENCY INFORMATION

Agency: __Tillamook County Transportation District Date: 11/13/19
Contact Person: Doug Pilant Phone: 503-842-3115
Email Address: dpilant@tillamookbus.com Fax: 503-815-2834

Agency Address: _3600 3™ Street, Tillamook, OR 97141

The above Agency, through its Public Transit program or public transit affiliate, is requesting
price quotes from Oregon State Price Agreement Contract Vendors for the purchase of the
following vehicle(s):

From (circle): Oreqon State Price Agreement/ Other No. of Vehicles Required: _1

—_—

ODOT Public Transit Vehicle Category (Check): (Please see ODOT Public Transit Vehicle
Descriptions and Useful Life Standards)

[JcatA []catB [] CatC [] CatD [X] CatE_1 _ (selectfrom1to3)
Length (can be range): _@ 22" Regular Seats: __5 ADA Stations/Tiedowns: _ 2

Fuel Type: [X] Gasoline [ ]Diesel []Bio-fuel [ ]Hybrid [ ] CNG []Propane
< High Floor [ ] Low Floor Other Comment: Engine to have hardened valves

O:\Administration\Web\WebDocuments\ProviderHandbook\wehicle-rfg-template-form Revised February 2, 2015 RFQ Page 1 of 5

N




The general specification for vehicle is as follows:

—
A. VENDOR'’S VEHICLE BASE PRICE INFORMATION VEHICLE BASE PRICE

This Section to be completed by Vendor Enter base price from State

Price Agreement below

Vehicle Make/Model: 2020 NORCAL FORD TRANSIT

Length: 22’

Fuel Type: GASOLINE

Floor: [X High Floor [ | Low Floor Other:

No. of Regular Passenger Seats: § #55440.00
No. of ADA Stations w/Tiedowns Desired: 2
Other Special Note: HARDENED VALVES NOT CURRENTLY
AVAILABLE. POWER SLIDING DOORS NOT AVAILABLE UNTIL
SPRING 2020.
B. VEHICLE REQUIRED SPECIFICATIONS
Requesting Agency completes Deascription column
Vendor completes “Vendor Response” columns VENDOR RESPONSE
Requesting Agency’s Vendor Suggestions

Required Specifications Description (related to vehicle specs)
Altoona Test Executive Summary — provide copy with
RFQ response N/A (MASS PRODUCED VEHICLE)
All standard specs per State Price Agreement - please YES, OMITING SEON CAMERA
include a list of vendor provided standard specs with SYSTEM IN LIEU OF REQUESTED
RFQ response including all chassis specs ANGELTRAX SYSTEM

Include floorplan showing side mounted lift with 2 W/C

positions and seating for 5 including driver and co-pilot YES

Long wheelbase with extended body and high roof, or

equivalent — dual rear wheel YES

Seats to have level 3 vinyl coverings YES

EQUAL- ADDITIONAL VERTICAL

Full length “L” track front to back for maximum flexibility FRSCILABBED REABEIITION 6

. HORAZONTAL TRACK FOR MAXIMUM
OF kaigar wheekchas FLEXABILITY (FULL LENGTH NOT
AVAILABLE)
Shift N Step Lift with ambulatory passenger step entry
. YES
at lift door
2020 chassis with power sliding passenger door (lift 'YES
O:\Administration\WebWebDocuments\ProviderHandbook\vehicle-rfg-template-form Revised February 2, 2015 RFQ Page 2 of 5

=%
L




door) with controls at driver seat

_ 3.7L Gasoline engine or equivalent WITH hardened
valves for future propane conversion

3.5L ECO-BOOST QUOTED PER AGENCY
APPROVAL (3.7L NO LONGER IN
PRODUCTION)

Privacy Glass (tinted windows)

YES

Passengers seats to be 19" Freedman GO-ES or
equivalent with one double folding seat behind lift and
one single seat behind driver at rearmost of van.
Similar to this configuration:

YES-SINGLE FIXED SEAT 19", DOUBLE
FOLD AWAY 17.5"

AngelTrax interior/exterior 4 camera CCTV and audio
system with HD solid state 500 GB hard drive with five

(5) SD Backup Cards and passive GPS, or approved YES

equivalent. Consult with District on location of hard

drive.

RAM Mobile Data Terminal arm mounts for Samsung

Tab A with RAM case (RAM-GDS-DOCK-V3BS). Arm

mounts to be installed to prevent shaking/movement YES

during normal driving conditions and shall be installed

within the driver’s reach when seated/driving. Mounts

shall not prevent OEM cupholders from use.

Tillamook decals printed and installed by Gillespie YES

Graphics before delivery. N

Total of 4 passenger seat belt extensions YES

Total of 2 OEM Driver seat belt extensions YES

Total of 3 12" wheelchair belt extensions YES

Total of 8 tie-down webbing loops (blue 14”) YES

Subtotal Cost of Required Options: | $20,373

Total Vehicle Cost With All Required Options: | $75,822.00

Estimated Vehicle Privilege Tax (if billing to
agency) - NOTE: ADA Modifications are
exempt from tax

$ 379.11

C. VEHICLE PREFERRED OPTIONS

O:\Administration\Web\WebDocuments\ProviderHandbook\ehicle-rfg-template-form Revised February 2, 2015 RFQ Page 3 of 5

P




Included in | $Additional Vendor
Requesting Agency’s Preferred Options S Gas*ior | Suggestions
.y Price? Option$ (related to
Description .
(or Note Not | vehicle specs)
YES /NO | Available)
Qty. 6 additional All-season tires — no wheels — price $1,362.00
. NO ($227 PER
per tire TIRE)
Qty. 4 additional studded tires on wheels for rear of van $2,082.00
— price per tire/wheel combination (mounted and NO ($520.50 PER
balanced) WHEEL/TIRE)
Qty. 2 additional studded tires — no wheels — for front of NO $572.00
van — price per tire ($286 PER)
Subtozl Cost of Preferred Options: $4,016.00

Vendor’s Signature: /’M/W/’

Vendor's Response Back to RFQ

Sample Floor plan (A

T shittfStep

% 4 B - >
D) @ Lift

)

VENDOR INFORMATION

lease sign and date your response here,

or cut-and-paste new plan here, or attach on back)

— g

o ot e s .

Date Sent: _ ‘2 /¢ c///?

T

Vendors are strongly encouraged to submit price quotes using the format provided. Vendors should
specifically note if and how they meet the above specifications and note any differences in what has
been called out above in their price quotes. This may be done on the form or on an attached sheet. The

O:\Administration\Web\WebDocuments\ProviderHandbook\vehicle-rfg-template-form Revised February 2, 2015

RFQ Page 4 of 5

S




Nor-bidlvaws

AWW.nercaivans.com todi Iree [B861 882-0156 fax {530) 852-0259

Re: Altoona testing.

To whom it may concern-

NorCal Vans provides wheelchair-accessible ADA-compliant commercial conversions on the Ford Transit.

Altoona testing is regulated by the Federal Transit Administration and applies to busses purchased with
FTA capital assistance programs.

FTA does not require testing of an “unmodified mass-produced van” (defined as a van that is mass-
produced, complete and fully assembled as provided by an OEM. This shall include vans with raised
roofs, and/or wheelchair lifts, or ramps that are installed by the OEM, or by a party other than the OEM
provided that the installation of these components is completed in strict conformance with the OEM
modification guidelines) when offered in the 4-year/100,000-mile service category.

NorCal Vans is a Ford Quality Vehicle Manufactures (QVM), meaning our conversion procedures are in
strict conformance with Ford recommendations and standards. Our facility and our processes are
inspected annually by Ford so that we may retain the QVM status. Our conversions do not affect the
structural integrity of the Ford Transit, nor do they affect any of the Ford OEM warranties.

As such, under FTA regulations a Ford Transit with a NorCal Vans conversion qualifies as an unmodified
mass-produced van,

Also, under FTA regulations, unmodified mass-produced vans are exempt from Altoona testing when
offered in the 4-year/100,000 miles service life category.

For more information, please refer to FTA’s web site:

https://www.transit.dot gov/research-innovation/interpretations-definitions

Thank you.

Grag_ Tl

Greg Hollis
NorCal Vans
1/23/18

866-892-0150




Q@

U.S. Department Headquarters East Building, 5™ Floor — TCR
Of Transportation 1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE
Federal Transit Washington, DC 20590

Administration

September 27, 2019

Amanda McTavish
Nor-Cal Vans

1300 Nord Ave #125
Chico, CA 95926

Re: TVM DBE Goal Concurrence/Certification Letter — Fiscal Year 2020
Dear Ms. McTavish:

This letter is to inform you that the Federal Transit Administration’s (FTA) Office of Civil Rights

has received Nor-Cal Vans’ Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) goal and methodology for FY
2020 for the period of October 1, 2019-September 30, 2020. This goal submission is required by the
U.S. Department of Transportation’s DBE regulations at 49 CFR Part 26 and must be implemented in
good faith.

We have reviewed your FY 2020 DBE goal and determined that it is compliant with DOT’s DBE
regulations. You are eligible to bid on FTA-funded transit contracts. This letter or a copy of the TVM
listing on FTA’s website may be used to demonstrate your compliance with DBE requirements when
bidding on federally funded vehicle procurements.

FTA reserves the right to remove/suspend this concurrence if your DBE program or FY 2020 DBE
goal is not implemented in good faith. In accordance with this good faith requirement, you must
submit your DBE Uniform Report to FTA by December 1, 2019. This report should reflect all FTA-
funded contracting activity for the second period of FY 2019 (i.e., from April 1 to September 30).

Please also be mindful that your FY 2021 DBE goal methodology must be submitted to FTA by
August 1, 2020. Any significant updates to the program plan must be submitted to FTA as they
occur. Thank you for your cooperation. If you have any questions regarding this approval, please
contact the FTA DBE Team via e-mail at FTATVMSubmissions@dot.gov.

Sincerely,

)

/ John I;)Z;/
~ Prografl Manager

o

Office of Civil Rights



ROF-Laf s s e T

WWW RS CalvaBs.com tail frae (EBE] RGZ-0150 tax (538} 832-0249

To whom it may concern-

NorCal Vans conversions on the 2015-2015 Ford Transit intended for the transportation of wheelchair

users as passengers are designed and built to meet current applicable FMVSS requirements as well as
current applicable ADA requirements.

: :I 7126/2018
—

Authorized si ure Date

k;‘.reg Hollis

NorCal Vans

0



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Authorizing the General )
Manager to Execute a Contract )
with Trillium Solutions, Inc. for NWOTA )

)

Website Trip Planner Enhancements RESOLUTION NO. 19-38

WHEREAS, the Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance (NWOTA) Coordinating
Committee was awarded a STIF Discretionary grant from ODOT to create a new NWOTA
website to market and brand regional coordinated transit services (the "Website”); and

WHEREAS, NWOTA has determined that additional enhancements to the Website
are needed in the form of user trip planning functionality (the “Enhancements”); and

WHEREAS, Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) serves as fiscal
agent for NWOTA; and

WHEREAS, the TCTD conducted a RFP process on behalf of NWOTA to select a
consultant to develop and implement the Enhancements; and

WHEREAS, TCTD selected Trillium Solutions, Inc., the only respondent to the
RFP, as the consultant for this work.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors:

that the Board authorizes the TCTD General Manager to execute a contract not to
exceed $145,000 with Trilllum Solutions Inc. to develop and implement the
Enhancements for NWOTA.
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 19" day of December 2019.

ATTEST:

By: By:
Judy Riggs, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager




PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT

This contract for personal services is entered into by and between TILLAMOOK COUNTY
TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT, a special district of the State of Oregon, hereinafter
referred to as TCTD, acting as fiscal agent for the NWOTA, and TRILLIUM SOLUTIONS,
INC,, hereinafter called CONTRACTOR to provide the services described in the Request for
Proposal issued November 4, 2019, and the Proposal Response, due November 26, 2019, which
by this reference are hereby made part of this contract and incorporated herein. The following
provisions shall comprise this contract:

I. SCOPE

This Contract covers the personal services (the “Services”) as described in (1) the Request for
Proposals issued by TCTD on November 4, 2019 (the “RFP;” attached hereto as Exhibit B, and
fully incorporated herein), and (2) the RFP Response submitted by CONTRACTOR on
November 26, 2019 (attached hereto as Exhibit C, and fully incorporated herein).

Work shall be performed in accordance with a schedule approved by TCTD. CONTRACTOR
shall meet the highest standards prevalent in the industry or business most closely involved in
providing the appropriate goods or services. The Contract shall commence upon contract
execution and continue until completion of the Services by CONTRACTOR, unless earlier
terminated as provided for herein.

11. COMPENSATION

A. TCTD agrees to compensate CONTRACTOR on a fee-for-services basis as detailed in this
Contract. Invoices submitted for payment in connection with this Contract shall be properly
documented and shall indicate pertinent DISTRICT contract and/or purchase order numbers.
All charges shall be billed monthly and will be paid net 30 days from receipt of invoice. The
maximum compensation authorized under this Contract shall not exceed $145,000.

B. CONTRACTOR is engaged hereby as an independent contractor and will be so deemed
for purposes of the following:

1 CONTRACTOR will be solely responsible for payment of any Federal or State
taxes required as a result of this Contract.

2. This Contract is not intended to entitle CONTRACTOR to any benefits generally
granted to DISTRICT employees. Without limitation, but by way of illustration, the
benefits which are not intended to be extended by this Contract to CONTRACTOR are
vacation, holiday and sick leave, other leaves with pay, tenure, medical and dental
coverage, life and disability insurance, overtime, Social Security, Workers'
Compensation, unemployment compensation, or retirement benefits (except insofar as
benefits are otherwise required by law if CONTRACTOR is presently a member of the
Oregon Public Employees Retirement System).

3. If CONTRACTOR has the assistance of other persons in the performance of this
Contract, and CONTRACTOR is a subject employer, CONTRACTOR shall qualify and
remain qualified for the term of this contract as an insured employer under Oregon
Revised Statutes (“ORS”) Chapter 656.

C. CONTRACTOR certifies that, at present, he or she, if an individual is not a program,
TCTD, or Federal employee.

D. CONTRACTOR, if an individual, certifies that he or she is not a member of the Oregon
Public Employees Retirement System.



III. FEDERAL CONTRACT SPECIAL CONDITIONS

A. Failure to Perform

TCTD may, subject to the provisions of paragraph (4) below, by written notice of default to
Contractor, terminate the whole or any part of this contract in any one of the following
circumstances.

1.

6.

If Contractor fails to make delivery of the supplies or to perform the services within
the time specified herein or any extension thereof; or

If Contractor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this contract, or so fails to
make progress as to endanger performance of this contract in accordance with its
terms, and in either of these two circumstances does not cure such failures within a
period of ten (10) days (or such longer period as TCTD may authorize in writing)
after receipt of notice from TCTD specifying such failure. CONTRACTOR’S failure to
perform the scope of work identified or failure to meet established performance
standards shall be subject to consequences that include but are not limited to:

¢ Reducing or withholding payment;

¢ Requiring CONTRACTOR to perform, at the CONTRACTOR’S expense,
additional work necessary to perform the identified scope of work or meet the
established performance standards; or

¢ Declaring a default, terminating the contract and seeking damages and other
relief under the terms of the contract or other applicable law.

In the event TCTD terminates this contract in whole, or in part, as provided in
paragraph (2) above of this clause, TCTD may procure, upon such terms and in such
manner as TCTD may deem appropriate, supplies or services similar to those
terminated, and Contractor shall be liable to TCTD for any excess costs for such
similar supplies or services; provided, that Contractor shall continue the
performance of this contract to the extent not terminated under the provisions of this
clause.

Contractor shall not be liable for any excess costs if the failure to perform the
contract arises out of causes beyond the control of and without the fault or negligence
of Contractor. Such causes may include, but are not restricted to, acts of God or of
the public enemy, acts of TCTD in either its sovereign or contractual capacity, fires,
floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes and unusually
severe weather; but, in every case, the failure to perform must be beyond the control
of Contractor and without Contractor’s fault or negligence. Contractor shall not be
liable for excess costs for failure to perform, unless the supplies or services to be
furnished were obtainable from other sources in sufficient time to permit Contractor
to meet the required performance schedule.

. The rights and remedies of TCTD provided in this clause shall not be exclusive and

are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this
contract.

As used in this contract, the terms "subcontractor" and "subcontractors” mean
subcontractor(s) at any tier.



B. Termination for Convenience

This contract may be terminated by either party upon at least ten (10) days written notice to the
other.

C. Compliance with Applicable Law

Contractor shall comply with all federal, state and local statutes, regulations, administrative
rules, executive orders, ordinances and other laws applicable to the Services under the Contract,
in effect at the time the Contract is executed and as may be amended, revised, enacted or
adopted thereafter. Changes in these legal requirements after the execution of the Contract may
or may not be the basis for modifications to Contractor’s schedule, scope and fee, depending on
a reasonable assessment of the nature of the change, the extent to which the change was
anticipated by Contractor or the Parties, and other circumstances then existing.

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Contractor expressly agrees to comply
with: (i) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; (ii) Section V of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973;
(iii) the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, (iv) Section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C.
1857 (h); (v) Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368; (vi) Executive Order 11738;
EPA regulations (40 CFR part 15) and ORS 659.425; (vii) Copeland Anti-Kickback Act (18 U.S.C.
874) as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3); (viii) Executive
Order 11246 entitled Equal Employment Opportunity as amended by Executive Order 11375 and
as supplemented in 41CFR chapter 60; (ix) Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141-3148) as
supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5), (x) Sections 103 and 107 of
the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327-330) as supplemented by
Department if Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5); (xi) Energy Policy and Conservation Act
(pub.L. 94-163, 89 Stat. 871); (xii) all regulations and administrative rules established pursuant
to the foregoing laws; and (xiii) all other applicable requirements of federal and state civil rights
and rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations.

If conflicts are discovered among federal, state and local statutes, regulations,
administrative rules, executive orders, ordinances and other laws applicable to the Services
under the Contract, Contractor shall in writing request TCTD to resolve the conflict. Contractor
shall specify if the conflict(s) create a problem for the design or other Services required under
the Contract.

D. Reporting Requirements

Contractor shall comply with the reporting requirements of TCTD including but not limited to
Progress, Status and Performance reports necessary to support progress payments or cost
reimbursements.

E. Records Maintenance; Access.

Contractor, and its Subcontractors, shall maintain all fiscal records relating to the Contract in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. In addition, Contractor shall
maintain all other records pertinent to the Contract and the Project and shall do so in such a

manner as to clearly document Contractor's performance.

TCTD and the federal government and their duly authorized representatives shall have access,
and Contractor shall permit the aforementioned entities and individual’s access, to such fiscal

U”\



records and other books, documents, papers, plans and writings of Contractor that are pertinent
to the Contract to perform examinations and audits and make excerpts and transcripts.

Contractor shall retain and keep accessible all such fiscal records, books, documents, papers,
plans, and writings for a minimum of 3 years, or such longer period as may be required by
applicable law, following final payment and expiration or termination of the Contract, or until
the conclusion of any audit, controversy or litigation arising out of or related to the Contract,
whichever date is later.

F. Patents; Copy Rights; Rights in Data

Any discovery or invention that arises during the course of the contract shall be reported to
TCTD. The Contractor shall promptly disclose inventions to TCTD, within 2 months, after the
inventor discloses it in writing to the Contractors personnel responsible for patent matters. The
rights in the invention/discovery shall be allocated consistent with “Government Patent Policy”
and FAR Part 27.

The Contractor shall comply with the requirements and regulations for Copy Rights and Rights
in Data pursuant to FAR Part 27.

IV. CONSTRAINTS
CONTRACTOR agrees:

A. If the services to be provided pursuant to this Contract are professional and/or
consultative, CONTRACTOR shall not delegate the responsibility for providing those services to
any other individual or agency.

B. Pursuant to the requirements of ORS 279B.020 and 279B.220 through 279B.235 and
Article XI, Section 10, of the Oregon Constitution, the following terms and conditions are made
a part of this Contract:

1. CONTRACTOR shall:

a. Make payments promptly, as due, to all persons supplying to
CONTRACTOR labor or materials for the prosecution of the work provided for in
this Contract.

b. Pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund from
such CONTRACTOR or subcontractor incurred in the performance of this
Contract.

c. Not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against TCTD on
account of any labor or material furnished.

2, If CONTRACTOR fails, neglects or refuses to make prompt payment of any claim
for labor or services furnished to CONTRACTOR or a subcontractor by any person in
connection with this Contract as such claim becomes due, the proper officer representing
TCTD may pay such claim to the person furnishing the labor or services and charge the
amount of the payment against funds due or to become due CONTRACTOR by reason of
this Contract.

3. CONTRACTOR shall pay employees for work in accordance with ORS 279B.o20
and ORS 279B.235, which is incorporated herein by this reference.

2



All subject employers working under the contract are either employers that will comply
with ORS 656.017 or employers that are exempt under ORS 656.126.

4. CONTRACTOR shall promptly, as due, make payment to any person or co-
partnership, association or corporation furnishing medical, surgical and hospital care or
other needed care and attention incident to sickness and injury to the employees of
CONTRACTOR, of all sums which CONTRACTOR agrees to pay for such services and all
moneys and sums which CONTRACTOR collected or deducted from the wages of
CONTRACTOR'S employees pursuant to any law, contract or agreement for the purpose of
providing or paying for such services.

5. This Contract is expressly subject to the debt limitation of Oregon counties set
forth in Article XI, Section 10, of the Oregon Constitution, and is contingent upon funds
being appropriated therefore. Any provisions herein which would conflict with law are
deemed inoperative to that extent.

6. CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend TCTD, its officers,
commissioners, agents and employees from and against all claims and actions, and all
expenses incidental to the investigation and defense thereof (including attorney’s fees),
arising out of or based upon damage or injuries to persons or property caused by the
errors, omissions, fault or negligence of CONTRACTOR or CONTRACTOR'S employees or
agents.

7. CONTRACTOR'S failure to perform the scope of work identified or failure to
meet established performance standards shall be subject to consequences that include, but
are not limited to:

a. Reducing or withholding payment;

b. Requiring CONTRACTOR to perform, at CONTRACTOR'S expense,
additional work necessary to perform the identified scope of work or meet the established
performance standards; or

c. Declaring a default, terminating the Contract and seeking damages and
other relief under the terms of the Contract or other applicable law.

8. All subject employers working under the Contract are either employers that will
comply with ORS 656.017 or employers that are exempt under ORS 656.126.

V. OWNERSHIP

Upon fulfillment of the Contract Terms, DISTRICT will have legal title to, and rights to use the
entirety of the documents, images, and data used to create the plan, (collectively referred to as
“the work”) without limitation. This includes the right to use the work in contexts including, but
not limited to: (1) public relations, press releases, or publicity; (2) re-use or modification of the
work; and (3) use as a teaching aid or continuing education tool.

Loy



VI. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

s

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
X Required by DISTRICT [] Not required by DISTRICT

The CONTRACTOR agrees to furnish TCTD evidence of commercial general liability
insurance in the amount of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit per
occurrence/$2,000,000 general annual aggregate for personal injury and property
damage for the protection of TCTD, its officers, commissioners, agents and employees
against liability for damages because of personal injury, bodily injury, death or damage
to property, including loss of use thereof, in any way related to this Contract. The
general aggregate shall apply separately to this project / location. TCTD, at its option,
may require a complete copy of the above policy.

B. AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY
X Required by DISTRICT [] Not required by DISTRICT

The CONTRACTOR agrees to furnish TCTD evidence of business automobile liability
insurance in the amount of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit for bodily
injury and property damage for the protection of TCTD, its officers, commissioners, agents
and employees against liability for damages because of bodily injury, death or damage to
property, including loss of use thereof in any way related to this Contract. TCTD, at its
option, may require a complete copy of the above policy.

C. PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY

[ ] Required by TCTD X Not required by TCTD
D. POLLUTION LIABILITY INSURANCE
[ ] Required by TCTD X Not required by TCTD
E. Such insurance shall provide sixty (60) days written notice to TCTD in the event of a

cancellation or material change and include a statement that no act on the part of the insured
shall affect the coverage afforded to TCTD under this insurance. This policy(s) shall be primary
insurance as respects to TCTD. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by TCTD shall be
excess and shall not contribute to it.

F. If CONTRACTOR has the assistance of other persons in the performance of this contract,
and CONTRACTOR is a subject employer, CONTRACTOR agrees to qualify and remain qualified
for the term of this contract as an insured employer under ORS Chapter 656. CONTRACTOR
shall maintain employer’s liability insurance with limits of $100,000 for each accident,
$100,000 per disease for each employee, and $500,000 each minimum policy limit.

G. If any other required liability insurance is arranged on a “claims made” basis, “tail”
coverage will be required at the completion of this Contract for a duration of thirty-six (36)
months or the maximum time period CONTRACTOR’S insurer will provide “tail” coverage as
subscribed, whichever is greater, or continuous “claims made” liability coverage for thirty-six
(36) months following the contract completion. Continuous “claims made” coverage will be
acceptable in lieu of “tail” coverage, provided its retroactive date is on or before the effective
date of this Contract.



H. The insurance, other than the Workers’ Compensation, Professional liability and
Pollution liability insurance, shall include TCTD as an additional insured. Proof of insurance
must include a copy of the endorsement showing TCTD as a scheduled insured.

I. CONTRACTOR shall require that all of its subcontractors of any tier provide insurance
coverage (including additional insured provisions) and limits identical to the insurance required
of Contractor under this Contract, unless this requirement is expressly modified or waived by
TCTD.

VII. SUBCONTRACTS

CONTRACTOR shall be responsible to TCTD for the actions of persons and firms performing
subcontract work. CONTRACTOR certifies that CONTRACTOR has not discriminated and will
not discriminate against any minority, women or emerging small business enterprise in
obtaining any subcontract.

VII. TERMINATION - AMENDMENT

A. This Contract may be terminated by either party upon at least ten (10) days written
notice to the other.

B. This Contract and any amendments to this contract will not be effective until approved in
writing by an authorized representative of the Tillamook County Transportation District, acting
as fiscal agent for the NWOTA.

C. This Contract supersedes and cancels any prior contracts between the parties hereto for
similar services.

The undersigned, by its signature, agrees to perform the scope of work as described in the
Contract documents and meet the performance standards set forth therein. By their signatures
below, the parties to this contract agree to the terms, conditions, and content expressed herein.

TRILLIUM SOLUTIONS, INC. TILLAMOOK COUNTY
TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

By: By:

Authorized Signature Authorized Signature

Name/Title (Printed) Name/Title (Printed)

Date Date

Telephone/Fax Number

Approved as to Form

CCB License # (if applicable)

Oregon Business Registry District Counsel

Entity Type/State of Formation



EXHIBIT A

INSURANCE CERTIFICATES
(to be supplied at the time of contract execution)



EXHIBIT B

TCDC RFP ISSUED NOVEMBER 4, 2019

70



Trilli
Tillamook County Transportation District “ um
3600 3rd St Trillium Solutions, Inc.

Tillamook, OR97141 www.trilliumtransit.com
(503) 567-8422

6106 NE Mallory Ave,
November 25, 2019 Portland, OR 97211

Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance agencies:

Trillium Solutions, Inc. (“Trillium”), an Oregon S-Corporation, herein provides a
proposed scope of services to provide marketing services for the Northwest Oregon
Transit Alliance (NWOTA).

This work would be performed in collaboration with Transit Marketing, and would
leverage resources and investments made by NWOTA separately in a website designed
and developed by Trillium, also in collaboration with Transit Marketing.

The goal of this work is to develop and implement a marketing approach that utilizes
web and mobile technology, as well as core transit marketing tools such as local
mailings and flyers, to support the increase of ridership and perceived quality of
NWOTA services. Trillium works exclusively with transit agencies to help design
marketing approaches tailored to the industry and in line with agency practices.

The contents of this proposal are a firm bid offered and available for 365 days from the
date of submittal. Feel free to reach out directly to Thomas Craig (contact information
below) with any questions you have regarding the proposal contents.

Best,

Thormgas Craig

General Manager

Trillium Solutions, Ifc.

6106 NE Mallory Ave.
Portland, OR 97211
503-567-8422 ext. 4
thomas@trilliumtransit.com

EXHIBIT C /I \

Page 1 of 14



Page 2 Trillium Solutions, Inc.

EXHIBIT C /] pe

Page 2 of 14



Website trip planner enhancement for NW Connector Page 3

Table of Contents

Project Understanding and Approach.......cmvismisesnerens 5SS £ A A BTV PR AT SRR R 4
Task 1: Develop detailed work plan
1.1: Site visit

1.2: Technical approach i
1.3: CommuUNICAtiIONS STrAt@EY .. vrcessermmrremmssesnsmessssssssmsent e
Task 2: Website trip planner ENhanCemMENTS ... st smsiseomecerssenseesssesssrsesssemmessssssssons 4
2.1. Review OSM data and perform high-value maintenance activities ... 4
2.2 Deploy the OTP and incorporate the available GRFS and GTFS-flex data SetSu 5
2.3 Develop a new NWConnector trip planner interface for the NWConnector.org website........... 5
2.4 Conduct a user testing, feedback and rEVIEW PrOCESS s ssessesesessssssssssesssms e 5
2.5 Examine the role OSM data plays in user feedback, and whether map issues are resulting in
negative user experiences . ST e Tt 5
Task 3: ONGOING MAINTENANCE ... cvecvcenrereresesiimmeressassise s st sssssssssssassssses seseessnessseseese 5
TaSK 41 PrOJECE FEPOTIING uvuvvevuermeenrerreeneeermeerersiesersessssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssosssssssessssssseesesesessesssmsmmssnenes 5
Proposer’s Qualifications and Experience......c.vunanns e e 5
References and Resumes. .......ccocnmmmsasinnne S PR R P — I st w6

EXHIBIT C
Page 3 of 14



Page 4 Attachment A

Project Understanding and Approach

This project will be accomplished in close collaboration with NWOTA at all stages, and
will require the active involvement of both parties. In line with the RFP, Trillium has
identified the following tasks and subtasks necessary to deliver the overall project.

Task 1: Develop detailed work plan

1.1: Site visit

A site visit will establish a working relationship between the agencies and the project
team, and allow for the project team to gather local understanding and context of the
needs of NWQOTA riders. Thomas Craig and Holly Kvatheim will visit all NWOTA
agencies at their quarterly in person.

The site visits will discuss
o Possible technical approach alternatives

e Communications approach alternatives
e Confirmation of preferred use cases

1.2: Technical approdgch

Trillium worked with NWOTA to design the original northwestconnector.net website,
and will expand on that knowledge to plot a technical approach that efficiently meets
both the short term feature goals and the long-term needs of site maintenance and
efficiency.

The project team will work with the NWOTA board and staff to develop a review
process that allows agency staff and end users to engage with proposed deliverables
before finalization, so that the team can move iteratively towards the end goals of the
project.

The team will research and define precisely which end user actions are to be
prioritized so that trip planner tuning supports the agency goals.

1.3: Communications strategy
Task 4 must develop effective resources for the dissemination of lessons learned

during the project. Therefore it will be critical to identify which parties will be involved
and how they will be communicated with.

Task 2: Website trip planner enhancements

2.1. Review OSM data and perform high-value maintenance activities
Trillium will identify possible gaps in coverage that may effect trip plan results.

EXHIBIT C
Page 4 of 14



Resumes Page 5

2.2 Deploy the OTP and incorporate the available GRFS and GTFS-flex data sets
Trillium will seek to reduce costs by leveraging the ODOT OTP implementation, but
will host a trip planner as needed.

2.3 Develop a new NWonnector trip plunner interfoce for the NWConnector.org
website

Trillium will develop both the custom interface for NWOTA as well as a plugin interface
allowing OTP to be more easily surfaced on other transit agency sites in Oregon.

2.4 Conduct a user testing, feedback and review process
Trillium will perform testing with end users and study past system analytics from the
current interface to confirm critical use cases.

After launch of OTP, all use cases will be tested side by side.

Trip planner tuning proposals and site design refinements will follow in response to
feedback

2.5 Examine the role OSM data plays in user feedback, and whether map issues gre
resulting in negative user experiences

Trillium will produce a white paper targeted at both NWOTA and ODOT, proposing an
approach to OSM data maintenance

This report will include the examination of end user experiences.

Task 3: Ongoing maintenance
As directed by NWOTA, Trillium will taunch and host the final enhanced website.

Task 4: Project reporting and documentation
Trillium agrees to all reporting requirements as laid out in the RFP.

Proposer’s Qualifications and Experience

Trillium Solutions, Inc. is an Oregon-based Corporation, which has also previously
operated as a sole proprietorship, founded in 2007. The firm has grown steadily from a
one-developer operation into a team of fifteen employees and a network of
contractors who contribute to the online presence of over 300 public transit agencies.
Trillium serves public transit clients by making their services easy-to-find, understand,
and use with online information. Trillium’s exclusive focus is on public transportation

EXHIBIT C
Page 5 of 14



Page 6 Attachment A

agencies. We bring a depth of experience and commitment to our work for transit that
is unique in the web technology marketplace.

Trillium has extensive particular experience with the NWOTA agencies as well as with
the technologies in play during this project:

o NWOTA website (developed by Trillium)

o  GTFS-flex (Trillium provides for 30 agencies)

o OTP (Trillium provides for 25 agencies)

s OSM (Trillium supports for 15 agencies)

Trillium’s project manager for this project with be Thomas Craig, Trillium’s General
Manager. Mr. Craig brings eight years of project management, process development,
and consulting experience with a variety of public and private clients in multiple
industries.

Other key Trillium employees and consultants will include:
s Nome’s experience with GTFS data and other transit technologies ensures that

digital and web marketing strategies are deployed by a development specialst.
¢ Holly Kvalheim, Junior Consultant, will provide support for marketing services
as well as participate in the development of the marketing plan.

References and Resumes

Trillium provides marketing services, focused on website management but extending
to graphic design, social media strategy, marketing strategy and more to 30 public
transit clients. References are below, and resumes are attached on subsequent pages.

Regional Transportation Commission of Washoe County
John Ponzo

IT Manager

775-335-1828

jponzo@rtcwashoe.com

Trillium designed, developed, and launched rtcwashoe.com in July 2017. Since then,
additional features have been introduced and hosting provided. The project team
regularly works with the requests and priorities of the marketing department to
implement marketing and messaging solutions through the website framework.
Trillium designs marketing collateral for delivery online.

Central Contra Costa Transit Authority

Jim Brown
Director of Information Technology

EXHIBIT C /] \j
Page 6 of 14 l[



Resumes ) Page 7

925-680-2032
brown@cccta.org

Launched January 2019, the new countyconnection.com was designed, developed,
and hosted by the proposed project team. The project successfully coordinated the
work of different departments and stakeholders at the agency.

Truckee North Tahoe Transportation Management Association
Jaime Wright

Executive Director

530-582-4931

jaime@laketahoetransit.com

Trillium designed, developed, and launched tahoetruckeetransit.com in April 2018 providing
access to schedule information for the TART system on the North Side of Lake Tahoe.,

EXHIBITC
Page 7 of 14

¥



Page 8 Attachment A

Attachment A: Resumes

[

EXHIBITC (/
Page 8 of 14 -



Resumes o Page 9

Thomas Craig

General Manager

Operations and financial manager of Trillium Solutions, Inc. with 5 years of experience
in small business management, and a strong expertise in financial analysis and
modeling, project management, and communication.

B.A. History, Reed College

Key Skills
¢ Accounting
o Financial modeling
o Process management
e Communications, report writing, website content

Trillium Experience
Operations Manager, September 2013 - now
e Project Manager for Marin Transit Passenger Information project.
o Performed the passenger information, review, and recommendations
o Managed the design implementation process.
¢ Project Manager for El Dorado Transit Website and Branding project.

o This comprehensive branding and customer information project
included a system map, bus wrap design, new logo, website and other
marketing materials for the agency

o Developed many of Trillium’s internal management systems, operations
manuals, and software documentation.

Previous Experience
¢ Subsidy and A/R Coordinator, Knowledge Universe, Portland, OR, 2013-2014
o Work with government agencies to ensure compliance with agency
standards for childcare subsidies.
o Communication of policies and procedures to corporate staff.
e Financial Modeler and Project Manager, Masterplans.com, Portland, OR, 2012-
2013
o Developed financial models for approximately 500 businesses, with
revenues as large as $50M.
Project management of business plan writing contracts
Development of marketing materials, including mass emails, social
media posts, and website content.
e Business Analyst, Causeit, Portland, OR, 2011-2012
o Associate Portfolio Manager, Africa Capital Advisors, LLC, 2009-2011

EXHIBIT C
Page 9 of 14



Page 10 Attachment A

Nome Dickerson

Web Developer

Nome develops and maintains WordPress websites for Trillium. Their breadth of
experience with different programming languages and current Master’s level study on
Machine Learning bring creative solutions to complex problems.

M.S. Computer Science, Portland State University
B.A. Russian, Reed College

Key Skills
e Web development

e HTML/CSS, Wordpress, Javascript, SQL, Python
e C,Java, Haskell
e Machine Learning, Embedded Systems

Trillium Experience
e Web Developer, March 2016 - Present

o Develops and deploys WordPress themes

o Performs WordPress updates and edits themes upon client request

o  Work with GTFS-to-HTML for timetable generation

o Creates and maintains detailed process documentation and research
on best practices

Prior Experience
e Graduate Teaching Assistant, Portland State University, Portland, OR 2015 -

2016

o Helped to design and implement a new undergraduate course
curriculum using MIT’s Unix-based xv6 system

o Responsible for teaching and grading projects requiring extensive
reasoning about multithreaded C code

e Embedded Platform and Tools Intern, Intel Open Technology Center, 2015

o Researched continuous integration possibilities for the Yocto project,
an open-source embedded Linux build system

o Developed a proof-of-concept for a Jenkins plugin

EXHIBITC

0

Page 10 of 14



Resumes Page 11

Holly Kvalheim

Project Coordinator/Junior Consultant

Holly Kvalheim supports Trillium’s projects and processes through data management,
maintaining high standards for accuracy and excellent communication.

B.A. Economics, University of Puget Sound

Key Skills
« Datamanagement
o Clear communication
o Project coordination

Trillium Experience

Data Technician, July 2016 - now
o Project management and delivery of websites for
o Merrimack Valley Regional Transit Authority (2017, Massachusetts)
o StarTransit (2018-19, Texas, in progress)
¢ Lead consultant and presenter for GTFS data training workshop for Via Transit
(San Antonio)
» Website content management
e Search engine optimization review, analysis, and content creation
e GTFSupdates and maintenance
« Client communications and data retrieval
¢ Special project coordination including work on the ongoing Travel Oregon and
NWOTA marketing and technology projects

Previous Experience

o Legal Assistant, Alleman Hall McCoy Russell & Tuttle LLC, 2014
o Preparation and filing of patent prosecution documents

o Docketing
« Financial Empowerment Coordinator, El Centro de la Raza, Seattle, WA 2013-
2014

o Established data tracking and reporting procedures for private and
public grants

o Co-authored and implemented improved state-wide reporting
structures for foreclosure mitigation grant

EXHIBIT C
Page 11 of 14

i



Page 12 Attachment A

o Technical database support for social services agencies across the state

EXHIBIT C
Page 12 of 14



Trillium

Tillamook County Transportation District .
3600 3rd St www.trilliumtransit.com

Tillamook, OR 97141 (503) 567-8422
6106 NE Mallory Ave.

Portland, OR 97211
November 25, 2019

Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance agencies:

Trillium Solutions, Inc. (“Trillium”), an Oregon S-Corporation, herein provides a price
proposal to accompany the proposed scope of services for the Northwest Oregon
Transit Alliance (NWOTA) delivered under a separate cover.

The contents of this proposal are a firm bid offered and available for 365 days from the
date of submittal. Feel free to reach out directly to Thomas Craig (contact information
below) with any questions you have regarding the proposal contents.

Best,

%a&(raqg
General Manager
Trillium Solutions, Irnfc.

6106 NE Mallory Ave.
Portland, OR 97211
503-567-8422 ext. 4
thomas@trilliumtransit.com

)
r
EXHIBIT C ? )

Page 13 of 14



Page 2 Attachment A

Cost proposal

Trillium provides hourly rates for the following staff members:

Staff member Rate
Thomas Craig $150
Nome Dickerson $150
Holly Kvalheim $100

Hours per staff member per task are estimated as follows.

Task Craig Dickerson | Kvalheim | Total
1 40 50 80 170
2 40 250 160 450
3 20 40 40 100
4 40 20 120 180
Total 140 360 400 900

With expenses, this constitutes the following Not-to-Exceed bids for each task.

The expenses budget for task 2 is an estimate and assumes that Trillium will need to

host an OTP instance.

Task Staff cost Expenses Total

i, $21,500 $21,500
2 $59,500 $30,000 $89,500
3 $13,000 $13,000
4 $21,000 $21,000
Total $145,000

Trillium proposes a not-to-exceed cost to perform this scope of work of $145,000,

billed based on progress and hours.

EXHIBIT C
Page 14 of 14

kS

1



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Authorizing the General Manager to )
Amend the Columbia Pacific CCO )
Non-Emergent Medical Transportation )

)

Services Delegation Agreement RESOLUTION NO. 19-39

WHEREAS, Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) desires to act as a
broker for non-emergency medical transportation services for Columbia Pacific
Coordinated Care Organization (CPCCO); and

WHEREAS, TCTD has the power to act as a broker for non-emergency medical
transportation services under ORS Chapter 267; and

WHEREAS, TCTD and CPCCO recognize that such an arrangement for non-
emergency medical transportation services creates efficiencies for and is in the best
interest of both parties; and

WHEREAS, TCTD and CPCCO have negotiated the terms under which TCTD will
provide the brokerage services and have reduced such terms to writing; and

WHEREAS, TCTD and CPCCO have executed the Columbia Pacific CCO Non-
Emergent Medical Transportation Services Delegation Agreement; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors that:

the General Manager is authorized to execute an amendment to the CPCCO
NEMT Services Delegation Agreement on behalf of the Tillamook County

Transportation District to extend the terms of the Agreement through March 3,
2020°.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 19" day of December 2019.

ATTEST:
By: ,i'é-w@f m.-éw@/ By: g)‘-*«& % by
C ;U@ggs/,ﬁoarQQﬁéﬁ Doug Pilant, General Manager

r b
o



